
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MARCH 4, 2024 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. Nonprofit Allocation Review (United Way Director Sherry Archibald)
b. Introduction of GIS Manager (City Manager’s Office)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Father David Wyly)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1 Minutes of the Special Meeting of January 18, 2024
A.2 Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 22, 2024
A.3 Minutes of the Recessed Meeting of January 23, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Goldsboro High School Lady Cougar Recognition Proclamation  
C. Hope Restorations Presentation 
D. MLK Subcommittee Report on the MLK event (Carole Battle, MLK Subcommittee Chair) 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
E. Amending a Capital Project Fund Ordinance – Street Improvements Capital Project Fund (G1105)

(Finance) 
F. Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund

(G1109) (Finance) 
G. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 (Finance)
H. Deed of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and Royal Farms for property located on West

Grantham Street (Parcel No. 2690603842) (Engineering) 
I. 2023 Resurfacing Project Final Adjusting Change Order No. 1 Formal Bid No. 2023-002 (Engineering)
J. SET PUBLIC HEARING Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Benjamin Carl Price – Corner of

S. US 117 Hwy., S. US 13 Hwy., and Carolina Street (Planning) 
K. 45th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing (Police)
L. Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (June 7th and August 2nd, 2024) (Police)
M. Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (November 30, 2024) (Police)
N. Resolution Authorizing the City Attorney to Institute Proceedings to Condemn Property of the Heirs of

Otho J. Glenn (City Attorney) 
O. Resolution Authorizing the City Attorney to Institute Proceedings to Condemn Property of the Heirs of

Lula Floyd Jacks (City Attorney) 
P. Revising the Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events (City Clerk)
Q. Crossroads Strategies Agreement (City Manager’s Office)

Items L and M removed to March 18, 2024; Individual Action

Moved to March 18, 2024
Moved to March 18, 2024



2 

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

X. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
R. Women’s History Month Proclamation 

 
XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  

 
XII. CLOSED SESSION 

 
XIII. ADJOURN 



United Way of Wayne County
City of Goldsboro

Non-Profit 
Organization Funding

CONNECTED WE CAN

w.s item a



UWWC 2023 
IMPACT SNAPSHOT

Children participated in small groups, classes, 
and activites on making choices about their 
health and personal relationships, the effects 
of risky and abusive behaviors, healthy habits, 
and physical activiites

421 Children participated in small 
group, classes and activities 
on making positive choices

Adults attended life skills classes702

649

Individuals or families received support to 
recover from or prevent violence or abuse

Individuals received food, clothing, housing, 
necessities or monthly utility bill assistance

278

128

20 PROGRAMS
16,946 INDIVIDUALS 

IMPACTEDOV
ER

the percentage of
Wayne County's population 

that lives in poverty
www.census.gov

18.7%



HEALTH & 
WELLNESS

Everyone has the knowledge, 
resources, and opportunities 
to live a healthy lifestyle

BASIC
NEEDS

Ensure everyone's basic 
needs are met with dignity

FINANCIAL
STABILITY

Ensuring that all citizens 
achieve and maintain 

financial stability

EDUCATION
Every child develops and 
succeeds academically, 

socially, and emotionally

Bank on Wayne - Literacy Connections

Aim for Success - Boys & Girls Club of Wayne County, Girl 
Scouts - Community Troop - Girl Scouts Coastal Pines 
Council, Teen Court - Communities Supporting Schools, Tutor 
to the Top- Rones Chapel Community Center, Triple P 
Parenting Program - Partnership for Children - Wayne County, 
Adult and Family Literacy - Literacy Connections, Boy Scouts 
Community Troops - Boy Scouts Tuscarora Council 

Emergency Assistance - Salvation Army, Emergency Assistance 
Program - Society of St. Vincent de Paul, Domestic Violence 
Victim Support Shelter - Wayne Uplift, Meals on Wheels - WAGES, 
Armed Forces Emergency Services - American Red Cross, Single 
Family Fire Response - American Red Cross, Shelter for Men - 
Salvation Army, Cry Freedom Missions - Wayne Pregnancy 
Center, A Brush with Kindness - Habitat for Humanity Goldsboro-
Wayne

SMART Moves - Boys & Girls Club of Wayne County
Triple Play - Boys & Girls Club of Wayne County
Pregnancy, Birth & Beyond - Wayne Pregnancy Center

UWWC PARTNERS & 
PROGRAMS



HEALTH &
WELLNESS

BASIC
NEEDS

FINANCIAL
STABILITY

EDUCATION

UWWC Funded 
PARTNERS & PROGRAMS

We look to the community as a whole to create 
lasting change.

By combining resources, every contribution helps 
make a BIG collective impact.

The Community Campaign process: 

After the Board of Director's approval, funds 
are distributed for programs and grant 

funding to target the areas of need in Wayne 
County

UWWC Staff 
receives grant 
applications

Community Investment 
committee reviews them 

and makes 
recommendations to the 

Board of Directors

Board of Directors  
reviews and 

recommends for 
approval



United Way of Wayne County 
Impact & Experience

United Way of Wayne County’s -Annual Impact
• Managed Community Impact Funding since 1925

• 2023 – Managed $847,344.00

United Way of Wayne County’s -3rd Party Admin support 
• FEMA- Emergency Food & Shelter Program- Since 1999

• County of Wayne – CARES Funding -2021
• City of Goldsboro, Non-Profit Funding – 2023-2024

  United Way of Wayne County’s –Partnership & Support
• District 8 Guardian Ad-Litem- Since 2016

• Wayne County Health Department- Since 2020
• NC State Budget- Community Issue Support- 2024



Communication/Task2023-2024 Date  Status
Presentation to Council 20-Mar DONE
Council voted on 3rd Party 3-Apr DONE
Letter to Council 6-Apr DONE
Survey to Council 13-Apr DONE
Create/Complete contract: UWWC &COG. Signed 23-Apr DONE
Survey to Council 24-Apr DONE
Survey to Council 25-Apr DONE
Evaluate Survey 27-Apr DONE
Invite (Promote) Committee Sign Up 27-Apr DONE

Create Notice of Funding Opportunity -unique to Council priorities 30-Apr DONE
Present Update to Council 1-May DONE
Email to past recipients 2-May DONE
Email to Committee- Update 2-May DONE

Press Release-Open Step One 5-May DONE

COI Forms to Committee Members 5-May DONE
Open Appl  Step ONE 10-May DONE
Council Meeting- Update. Determine Amt 15-May DONE
Close Appl Step ONE 19-May DONE

Evaluate applications-Step ONE 19-May DONE
Notify all applicant- Move forward or not accepted 22-May DONE
Open Appl Step TWO 23-May DONE
Close Appl Step TWO 7-Jun DONE
UW staff evaluate 8-Jun DONE
Prepare applications for Committee to review 13-Jun DONE
Notify Committee -ZOOM Call (15th) 14-Jun DONE
Plan details for Presentations (notify non-profits) 14-Jun DONE
Send details to Committee to prepare for presentations:  22nd & 
26th 15-Jun DONE
Applications, docum&scorecard to Committee to review & 
prepare 16-Jun DONE
Presentations to Committee 22-Jun DONE
Presentations to Committee 26-Jun DONE
ZOOM meeting w Committee Chairs(4) final recommendations 28-Jun DONE
Prepare recommendations memo 3-Jul DONE
Submit required COG documents to Applicants-due: 7/11 3-Jul DONE
Recommendations to Council 10-Jul DONE
Prepare PP for Council with data 10-Jul DONE
Inform ALL applicants 18-Jul DONE
Memo to COG Finances- Request funding (1/2) 20-Jul DONE
Reporting - Benefit Partners N/A N/A
Payments- Balance due-Practiced.  15-Jan DONE
Evaluate Program- Council retreat 1-Feb
Present process to Council 1-Mar
Request Reporting May-24
Review & Share reporting with COG May-24

COG/NPO Funding Process



NOTICE OF

FUNDING

OPPORTUNITY

NOTICE OF

FUNDING

OPPORTUNITY

2023-2024

Provided by United Way of Wayne County
in support of the City of Goldsboro



TABLE OF CONTENTS

About City of Goldsboro (mission, vision, & goals)

Impact Areas Overview

Agency Eligibility

General Information for Applicants

Agency Prequalification Checklist

Application Process

Funding Criteria

Expectations of Funded Non-Profits

Application Scoring Key

 1

 

 1 - 4

 

 5

 

5

 

6

 

7

 

8

 

9

 

10

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 

*Disclaimer

The United Way of Wayne County is serving as the Third-Party Administrator for the City of Goldsboro’s Non-Profit funding for
the fiscal year 2023-2024. Please be advised that the City of Goldsboro leadership has identified the following focus areas in

order of their priorities: Basic Needs, Health & Wellness, Education, Financial Stability, Animal Welfare, Tourism, Recreation and
Arts & Culture. The Notice of Funding Opportunity provides information to consider interest and capabilities to execute

applications and reporting required to receive funds. 
 

If your organization provides services in support of one or more of the focus areas listed above, review Step ONE. Step ONE is a
prequalification, if you meet the application requirements for Step ONE, you may move to Step TWO. 



ABOUT CITY OF GOLDSBORO

The City provides services, promotes equality, and protects the well-being of all residents and
visitors to enhance our quality of life every day.

BASIC NEEDS
Ensure all residents basic needs

are met with dignity

FINANCIAL STABILITY
Ensuring that all residents achieve

and maintain financial stability

An extraordinary, diverse experience.

The following pages are an outline of our City Of Goldsboro Impact Grant process.

To understand our grant process, first read about our six Impact Areas

Safe and Secure Community
Strong and Diverse Economy
Exceptional Quality of Life
Racial and Cultural Harmony
Model for Excellence in Government

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Vision

Mission

Goals

While the City of

Goldsboro supports

multiple efforts

impacting our

community their

top four priorities

fall under these

four areas:

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 1

 We unite in support of our community.

EDUCATION
Every child in the City of Goldsboro

develops and succeeds socially,

academically and emotionally

HEALTH & WELLNESS
Everyone in City of Goldsboro

has the knowledge, resources and 

opportunities to live a healthy lifestyle

In addition to the four focus areas listed above, the City of Goldsboro

also supports Animal Welfare and Tourism, Recreation, and Arts & Culture



HEALTH & WELLNESS

BASIC NEEDS

Victims of a personal crisis

have increased access to

basic needs assistance.

At risk children have

increased access to

resources that address their

basic needs in order to

ensure a solid foundation

for future positive

development.

1.

2.

GOALS

Individuals have increased

knowledge of the implications

and prevention of disease and

addiction.

Youth have an increased ability

to make informed choices about

their health and personal

relationships and avoid risky and

abusive behaviors.

At risk students are provided with

resources to support heath &

wellness.

Families have increased skills and

resources that will help them

develop into a safe and effective

family unit.

1.

2.

3.

4.

GOALS

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 2



An increased number of children

enter school ready to learn and

are prepared to attain

benchmarks of success.

Youth increase their capacity to

stay in school and graduate to

become productive citizens by

being provided with layers of

support that address barriers to

success.

Adults increase their literacy skills

and knowledge to become

more successful in all areas of

life.

1.

2.

3.

GOALS

EDUCATION

Families and individuals have

increased access to support

that can elevate the family’s

financial stability and lift

individuals and families out of

poverty.

Individuals and families

increase their preparedness in

making responsible financial

choices and conscientiously

managing personal resources.

1.

2.

FINANCIAL STABILITY

GOALS

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 3



ANIMAL WELFARE

TOURISM, RECREATION,

Access to disease prevention,

proper nutrition, and

appropriate veterinary care.

Access to proper shelter and a

stimulating, safe environment

with humane handling.

1.

2.

GOALS

Programs support growth to

the economy.

Programs provide an

enhanced quality of life to

citizens of Goldsboro.

1.

2.

GOALS

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 4

ARTS & CULTURE



AGENCY ELIGIBILITY

The City of Goldsboro is interested in partnering with the most efficient, effective and innovative

nonprofit programs in the City of Goldsboro. 

The application process is open to all nonprofits. Priority will be given to agencies that can

provide high-quality programming and an ability to achieve and record measurable outcomes.

Any agency seeking funding must demonstrate the ability to operate programs in a manner

consistent with the highest standards of quality, which includes compliance with the City of

Goldsboro management and financial requirements. 

All agencies interested in applying for funding must complete a prequalification Step ONE

application.  

Your prequalification application, Step ONE, establishes your organization's capacity.  Step TWO

of your application clearly demonstrates that your agency’s mission and potentially funded

program, aligns with one or more of the City of Goldsboro’s community impact focus areas. The

total amount of funding requested should not exceed 30% of your program or agency budget.

All  agencies applying for funding are encouraged to be registered with both 2-1-1 and

NCCARE360.

The City of Goldsboro invests in proactive programs with an emphasis on prevention and

increasing people’s ability to attain their potential.  City of Goldsboro Impact grants are annual

grants awarded from the City of Goldsboro's general fund.

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 5

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR APPLICANTS

The City of Goldsboro funding year is from July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024. Contracts may be

extended at the discretion of City of Goldsboro. The impact year (reporting schedule) runs from

July 2023 - June 2024.

Grant funds for Practiced Partners (defined on page 10) are issued bi-annually: half in July 2023

& half in January 2024.  

Grant funds for Benefit Partners (defined on page 10) receive a reimbursement grant in January

2024 following the December 2023 deadline of reporting & receipts. In January 2024, Benefit

Partners receive the full amount, following six months of reporting and receipts.  

Only agencies aligned with the City of Goldsboro’s community impact goals, funding priorities

and outcomes are eligible for funding.

The United Way of Wayne County has established a City of Goldsboro Impact Committee

comprised of community volunteers that live and/or work in the City of Goldsboro. This

committee, and its subpanels, are responsible for reviewing applications and providing funding

recommendations to the City of Goldsboro’s Mayor & City Council.

All agencies are required to submit a prequalifying application (referred to as Step ONE).

Submissions open May 10th and close May 19th at 5pm. 

Once agencies have passed the prequalifying application (Step ONE), they have until June 7th

at 5pm to complete the full application (referred to as Step TWO) for funding. No late or

incomplete submissions will be accepted. Due to anticipated high demand we will not contact

you for corrections to your application; however, UWWC is available to support your efforts and

answer any questions on your application process. Please review your application for

completeness prior to submission. 



 *Is a registered nonprofit in good

standing with the State of North Carolina

and complies with all state and federal

laws & regulations and upholds a 501(c)3

tax-exempt status

 Is registered on both 2-1-1 and

NCCARE360

 Provides high quality services to people

living in the City of Goldsboro

 Has a clearly stated mission that aligns

with one or more City of Goldsboro

Impact priorities. 

 *Maintains a responsible volunteer Board

of Directors that meets regularly; and

effectively governs the organization to

fulfil its mission

 Has established administrative,

management and personnel policies in

place to assure the operational

effectiveness of the organization. 

 Develops plans for all programs,

evaluates program implementation and

effectiveness 

 Evaluates outcomes of program and

tracks results

 *Has appropriate insurance coverage

and can provide certificate of insurance

upon request

 Provides appropriate financials as

outlined in the grey box below 

 

AGENCY PREQUALIFICATION CHECKLIST

My agency:

Agencies with budgets over $500K must submit an audit

from the previous year with a financial statement prepared

by an Independent CPA. Agencies with budgets from

$200K-$499K must submit an independent financial audit

with management letter or a CPA review. Agencies with a

budget of less than $200K must submit an audit, a CPA

review, or tax returns/internal financial statements. If an

agency is required to have an audit by some other oversight

group or is required by organization’s Board of Directors,

then the City of Goldsboro requires copy of said audit.

Financial requirement for $200k-$499k is subject to change

following City Council advisement May 15th.  

 Keeps complete and accurate financial

records in accordance with the FASB

 *Has filed a Form 990 or 990EZ for the

most recent fiscal year, unless exempt

 Is willing to submit required statements

and documents for the most recent

completed fiscal year as part of the

annual financial process

 *Has a clearly stated non-discrimination

policy consistent with local, state and

federal law

 *W-9 signed

 Facilities meet minimum health, fire, and

safety codes and present no

architectural barriers to potential clients

(seeks to comply with the American 

 Disabilities Act of 1990) 

 Is in compliance with the USA Patriot Act

and other counterterrorism laws

 Is in good standing with all applicable

accreditations and legal matters

 *Holds a license to solicit as required by

the Charitable Organizations and

Solicitations Act-Act 169 of 1975

 With respect to employees, officers,

directors, and committee members, the

Agency has an Inclusiveness and Diversity

Policy that respects, supports, and

protects the dignity, uniqueness, and

intrinsic worth of every person.

 *Services funded by the COG are

provided to all persons without regard to

age, gender, race, religion, national

origin, disability, sexual orientation or any

other barriers to participation. 

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 6

*Supporting Documents Required in Step ONE



PROGRAM

EARNS HIGH

SCORE

Agency outcomes

do not align

Program is further

evaluated.   

 PROGRAM

EARNS MIDDLE

SCORE

PROGRAM

EARNS LOW

SCORE

Program aligns and

achieves outcomes

NPO Reviews Step ONE to

verify all requirements can

be  met

NPO submits Step ONE

with support documents

Program recommended

provided funding

availaility

UWWC notifies NPO to

proceed to Step TWO or

STOP

UWWC provides

recommendations to

Council

COG Impact Committee

makes recommendations 

Program is recommended

for funding

COG funds programs

Community Impact

Commitee reviews and

scores applications

Program is not 

 recommended

Program does not pass

APPLICATION PROCESS

NPO provides reporting

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 7

Timeline:

STEP ONE:Prequalification Requirements May 10-19, 2023

STEP TWO: Application Submission May 23-June 7, 2023

PRESENTATIONS: Specifics TBD Weeks of June 19, 2023

and June 26, 2023

FUNDING DECISIONS: July, 2023



A: Presentation Guidelines

All applicants who pass the prequalification, completing Step ONE & Step

TWO are required to present. Presentations may be held in person.

Your presentation should last a maximum of 10 minutes, followed by up to

10 minutes for questions.

Your presentation will be reviewed by a COG Impact Panel. The panel is

comprised of community volunteers who have reviewed your application.

Do NOT bring handouts or brochures. Any handouts or brochures should be

attached to your application.

You may use visuals (ex: poster board, flip chart, PowerPoint, etc.) 

Introduce your agency briefly but focus on the program(s) listed on your

funding application.

Give a statement of need. Presentations must include local data as

evidence of local need.

Explain how the program is carried out? How do you know it is working and

making a difference? How does the program align with the focus areas?

Provide results from the past year and explain what you expect to

accomplish over the next year.

Share trend statistics on your cost per unit of service, % of target population

served and/or progress toward your long term goals.

FUNDING CRITERIA

B: Funded Types

PRACTICED PARTNERS

These grants are awarded to qualifying nonprofits who received a City of

Goldsboro grant during the last grant cycle, who can provide impact data,

and whose applications meet all application standards. Recipients require

year end reporting.

BENEFIT PARTNERS

Grants are awarded to qualifying nonprofits who have not received City of

Goldsboro funding in the past grant cycle. Grant recipients require mid-year

reporting and are on a reimbursement schedule.

BENEFIT PARTNERS

Funding upon receipt & report in January. Submit mid-year report in December

under a reimbursement model. Submit year end report in May.  

PRACTICED PARTNERS

Funded in July 2023 & January 2024. Submits end of year report May 2024.

C: Funding & Reporting Schedules

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 8



EXPECTATIONS OF FUNDED NON-PROFITS

Submit reporting on time for each funded program.

Benefit Partners report at a minimum of twice a year (January & May).

Practiced Partners report at a minimum of once a year (May).

Keep in compliance with and submit all financial documents as requested.

Take a proactive stance in building a relationship with other community non-profits and

the City of Goldsboro, and in fulfilling the annual agency Memorandum of Understanding

with the City of Goldsboro, including but not limited to: 

Notify United Way of Wayne County of significant changes in any of the following:

organizational structure, facilities, outcomes provided to the community, policies or

program delivery structure. Discuss and resolve problems that may arise.

Understand that all funding is contingent upon the availability of funds.

Identify itself as a City of Goldsboro Funded Partner and use logos in recognition of

shared work.

Accept and utilize funds for the period covered by the MOU and for the purposes

designated.

Apply ALL funds to programs that benefit individuals living in the City of Goldsboro.

1.

a.

b.

2.

3.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 9



APPLICATION SCORING KEY

Failing Score:

0-69 points

 High Score:

85+ points

Middle Score:

70-84 points 

The City of Goldsboro provides funding to agencies that demonstrate a commitment to

providing high quality programming and an ability to measure outcomes in one or more of our

impact areas of Basic Needs, Health & Wellness, Education, Financial Stability, Animal Welfare

and Tourism, Recreation, Arts & Culture.

Each agency submitting a full application for funding will be required to track and report

results (as outlined in Expectations of Funded Non-Profits). Applicants should review the goals

and measurements to identify the primary strategy with which the proposed application aligns.

Awards made under this announcement are subject to the availability of City of Goldsboro

general funds. 

Criteria Scale:

City of Goldsboro Notice of Funding Opportunity 10

 Program Alignment:

 2-1-1 and NCCARE 360:

 Identified Demographics:

 Goal Alignment:

 Organizational Capacity:

 Program Measurement:

 Funding Request/Budget:

 Collaborate with Agencies:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

5 points

5 points

5 points

10 points

20 points

25 points

25 points

5 points



goldsboronc.gov

This document was published May 2023 and is subject to change.

unitedwayne.org 

 

Office hours are 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday

through Friday unless otherwise listed.

 

For questions on funding, contact UWWC

919.735.3591

 

City Managers Office

919-580-4330



City Council – GIS Update

Dylan Schreffler, GIS Manager

March 4, 2024

w.s. item b



Introduction
Background
• Goldsboro Native
• Attended Wayne Christian School
Professional Education
• ECU - B.S. Geographic Information Science and Technology (2020)
Professional Experience
• GIS Technician – Pike Engineering (2021-2022)
• GIS Specialist – City of Goldsboro (2022 – 2024)
• GIS Manager – City of Goldsboro (2024 – Present)



Current GIS Projects (Engineering)
PROJECT NAME: PROJECT STATUS: PROJECT BUDGET:

Stormwater Inventory Project Under Construction – Final Stages $1,362,900.00 

Lead and Copper Service Line Inventory Under Construction $2,037,000.00

• Stormwater Inventory Project
• Infrastructure Inventory and Condition Assessment

• Survey grade physical location
• Detailed attribute information

• GIS Data Development and Implementation
• ArcGIS Stormwater Utility Network Deployment
• Applications and Dashboards

• Lead Copper Service Line Inventory
• Requirement as part of the LCRR published by the EPA
• Data Collection

• Data and Applications are hosted locally
• Action

• Identification and notification
• Replacement if necessary



Internal GIS Initiatives

• Staffing
• GIS Specialist – Engineering
• GIS Interns
• Planner I – With GIS Experience

• Internal Initiatives 
• Planning

• Zoning
• Future and Current Development Map

• Engineering
• Utility Map Functionality
• Sign Inventory Map

• Information Technology
• Domain Migration
• Additional Servers



External GIS Initiatives
• External Needs

• Web Applications
• Utility Map
• City Owned Property Map

• Sharing data
• More collaboration with the county



Future GIS Initiatives
• Boost City Employee Efficiency 

• GIS for Departments

• Citizen Engagement



Questions?



1 of 2 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JANUARY 18, 2024 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Special Meeting to review the City Strategic 
Plan, discuss group dynamics and expectations, and identify Council priorities at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South 
Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina, at 5:30 p.m. on January 18, 2024.  

Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Mayor Gaylor provided a welcome, and thanked everyone for attending. He shared comments regarding the unique 
structure of the meeting, some of the topics and issues that would be covered, and why it would be a difficult discussion.  

City Strategic Plan Review 
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager, presented Exhibit A. He discussed how the original strategic plan 

was developed in 2017, and the way forward to revise and update the plan. Mr. Murphy also provided and discussed Exhibit 
B, which compared how other municipalities define various goals.  

Councilwoman Weeks asked how often an analysis is done to ensure we are attaining our visions. Matthew 
Livingston, Assistant City Manager, stated that he did not recall an analysis being done since he had been with the City. Mr. 
Murphy stated that there is an evaluation of programming to determine what is effective and what is not effective.  Tim 
Salmon, City Manager, asked Council to look at the dashboard to see the metrics currently being tracked, and provide input 
on other metrics they feel should be included, and goals for the future of the City.  

Mr. Livingston called for a break at approximately 6:15 p.m., for about 5 minutes. 

Discuss Group Dynamics and Expectations 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager, presented Exhibit C, concerning Group Dynamics and the Tuckman 

Model. He discussed the stages of the model, their fluidity, and the delicate balance needed for a successful group.  

Mr. Livingston continued by presenting Exhibit D, concerning 10 Habits of Highly Effective Councils. He stated 
that the presentation was based on the article by Carl Neu, Jr., that had previously been provided to Council.  

Councilman White stated that he did not agree with always looking forward; stating that you should understand 
where you have been and the mistakes you have made in order to move forward. He also asked what happens to the short- 
and mid-range goals, when you develop long-range goals. Mr. Livingston stated that he also struggled to get his head 
around only looking forward, using the example that generals that only use outdated battle tactics are not looking forward. 
He further stated that long-range goals being essential, did not preclude having short- and mid-range goals.  

Mr. Livingston also stated how Council would be indicating their goals and priorities for the City later in the meeting. 

Mr. Livingston called for a break at approximately 6:40 p.m. The video was cut off for approximately 30 minutes 
while the group sessions were set up, and the Councilmembers reviewed the Roles, Expectations, and Priorities to be 
discussed.   

Roles and Expectations Session 
The Councilmembers discussed what they felt are the roles and expectations of the Mayor, Council, City Manager, 

Assistant City Manager, and Clerk, as well as some do’s and don’ts for the same positions. Results included the following, 
and a full summary report will be provided at the Council Retreat on February 20-21, 2024.  

Item A1



4- 

03 ° °' 

o

o

on

rn

fl

N

000

tD

0

t 

O

a) 

O . 

ti

o

N

O 

o. -

0O
y > 

CA

N

b .

O : 

N

O

OU

4. .- 

N

o. " 

bD

N

O

bA

c 

s7° 

ti

ca

N

O

cz

m

cC • ^ 

W

C;

3N

w

Y

cd '

o

a) = . ^

fl

0 ^

C

bA 

b
0

b

U > 

ti

chi, 

O

O

N

O

b

U

y

bU  

ti

b

b.
A

0

U

vi ^

o

c 

t. 

U

O

a 

a

o

U

Cd

w

CZ

Ln

o

o •

o

U

3

p. 

U

w> 

3

U

o

o ~ 

o ° ° ~ :

b ~ ° , 

oa

oon ;" 

y.. 

O

bA ¢ 

C

03  . ' +- 

y

t-" 

c 

by

O

bt

da >

o

cnw
ai

ao
o

Cl

od`
t

o

o4, ° -
T

w

yO

oU
o

jj

03

a) 

y . 

U ' 

Cj ° ., 

vii

4- '

d ."" " „" 

N

w = 

0

t . 

O

U

L1, 

o

140. 

4, 

O

O

O

a) 

O

rc. 

ccC

U

C,

3

O

or

Uco
O . 

ci

to

0

El

UC]

va] 

ab '

C 

y 

co

x

m ° 

0N ) °° 
41, 

O

to

C13O
oA

s' 

to '

o •—

U

0

0

co

N

O

Q

0to ° 

a) 

tiO,

U

O

cC

U

N4 
U

CSC .

G

CC3

Cd

O

r~. .- 

vvc 
a) 

O

yW

CZ0 "
o

y>

i- 

a ° 

u

o

a 

o

o ' 

a . = 

ani

U

4 

1

4r

4 

co

rn .-

t." 

o

Ts

onn

a 

bn

3

OU >

O

o

o

o , ° 

to

O

m

O

o

N

a) 

yy

a) 

y

a

o °

Oo
o '

0

oo '

o

o,

10

o

a

4U

UO
o

a

0

a° 

3

C00co
to

4

O

6;

O

a) 

p

m >>

7% 

N

cz &

0

yu

c;

j °

o

qami

caQ.

co

vi

U

YO

i• 

cC ~ 

UA

3Go -

0

a) 

N

a) 

a)  

b° 

cn

to

42C40. 

b '

o

9 

N

O

tU• '

Ello

x

N0N



CO
D^ 

VJt% 0Cc

O
N
ON

ELUWcuVNQN

NEO

0:

1

a 

a

r

um

ZR

O

u

C

cL

pN

r` 

v

a

R

a

tA

N

u/ 

R

N

W

d

rt

D

m

0

a

v

u

a

Sv

vv

V

w

LL

l7

O

9

ZIu

y

CLu

vu
a

z

w

U

3

w

a

r

w

4—) 

eo

o

Tc

v

fl

O

w

N

L

C

C « 

o

v

Z

Ln

m

o

ms

3

3

30
3

m

0

3

N

N

HI

Vl

COD^ VJ
t% 

0Cc

O
N
ON

ELUWcu
V

NQN

NEO

v

T

o

y' 

NDIEcU',

LE. 

61Ir: 9,

l

CI.

Y; 

N: 

C

pi

w

Y

V;

i

m  

m

m

a

c

c

w

u

c

N

C

O

O

N

Ov

u

rt

a

C« 

O

w

W

p

w

e

o

E

c

w

a

u

E

N .

N

E

v

arc

E = 

wv

w

c

p

E

2

P

o

oc

EW
0 

a. 

V

N

R

O

O

W

O

u

3

y

a

v. 

m

v

w

o .- 

z

d

o

E

o

m 

c

o

n-+ 

w

m> 

m

w

v

o

O

l7

u 

T' 

w> 

o

x

o

N

C !+ 

w

u

w (

D

wlW

C

T

H

Qy

I

u

W ? - 

Z

C

N

H

L6

itJ

9

a

N

Q

C

m

O?

gggYEggg'. 

LD

y' 

w

vc
N

m

u

Q) 

u

t2

a

E

m

O

o

C

CL

O

N

C `

O

O

N

w

a 

o

J

W

C ` 

EO

w

v

YJ

0: 

W

w

WE

Y

N

u

v

O

U '

u

N (

7

W

C

c

0

7

w

O

w

Y

O

3

r> [

2

a

m

y > 

V

O

U

m > 

N (

7

U_ 

j

d

a

Q

w

3

w

a

w

I

c = 

0. 

Vf

O/ 

W

N

mRI

W

Y

u

N

ca

W

O

w

c . 

i

U. 

0

vo

0 ' 

u

u

0:

1

a 

i:

x' 

i55

u

C

N.
4

pN

O8J

a

m

C

c

p

of

a

tA

N

CO_

a

R

N

W

d

mO

to

O

y

N

N

C

w

Sv

vv

LL

l7

O

9

ZIu

y

CL

v

T

o
y' 

N

DIE
cU',

LE. 

61Ir: 
9,

l

CI.

Y; 

N: 

C

pi

w

Y

V;

i

m  

m

m

a

c

c

w

u

c

N

C

O

O

N

Ov

u

rt

a

C« 

O

w

W

p

w

e

o

E

c

w

a

u

E

N .

N

E

v

arc

E = 

wv

w

c

p

E

2

P

o

oc

EW
0 

a. 

V

N

R

O

O

W

O

u

3

y

a

v. 

m

v

w

o .- 

z

d

o

E

o

m 

c

o

n-+ 

w

m> 

m

w

v

o

O

l7

u 

T' 

w> 

o

x

o

N

C !+ 

w

u

w (

D

wlW

C

T

H

Qy
I

u

W ? - 

Z

C

N

H

L6

itJ

9

a

N

Q

C

m

O?

gggYEggg'. 

LD

y' 

w

vc

N

m

u

Q) 

u

t2

a

E

m

O

o

C

CL

O

N

C `

O

O

N

w

a 

o

J

W

C ` 

EO

w

v

YJ

0: 

W

w

WE
Y

N

u

v

O

U '

u

N (

7

W

C

c

0

7

w

O

w

Y

O

3

r> [

2

a

m

y > 

V

O

U

m > 

N (

7

U_ 

j

d

a

Q

w

3

w

a

w

I

c = 

0. 

Vf

O/ 

W

N

mRI

W

Y

u

N

ca

W

O

w

c . 

i

U. 

0

vo

0 ' 

u

u

a i:

x' 

u

C

7O' OJEp

Va

lY

N

v

W

w

CLuZ

W

a

Ln

O

o

v

Z

Ln

c

0

Q

i

T

1

Rlf

v

T

o
y' 

NDIEcU',
LE. 

61Ir: 9,
l

CI.

Y; 

N: 

C

pi

w

Y

V;
i

m  

m

m

a

c

c

w

u

c

N

C

O

O

N

Ov

u

rt

a

C« 

O

w

W

p

w

e

o

E

c

w

a

u

E

N .

N

E

v

arc
E = 

wv

w

c

p

E

2

P

o

oc

EW
0 

a. 

V

N

R

O

O

W

O

u

3

y

a

v. 

m

v

w

o .- 

z

d

o

E

o

m 

c

o

n-+ 

w

m> 

m

w

v

o

O

l7

u 

T' 

w> 

o

x

o

N

C !+ 

w

u

w (

D

wlW

C

T

H

Qy
I

u

W ? - 

Z

C

N

H

L6

itJ

9

a

N

Q

C

m

O?
gggYEggg'. 

LD
y' 

w

vc
N

m

u

Q) 

u

t2

a

E

m

O

o

C

CL

O

N

C `

O

O

N

w

a 

o

J

W

C ` 

EO

w

v

YJ

0: 

W

w

WE
Y

N

u

v

O

U '

u

N (

7

W

C

c

0

7

w

O

w

Y

O

3

r> [

2

a

m

y > 

V

O

U

m > 

N (

7

U_ 

j

d

a

Q

w

3

w

a

w

I

c = 

0. 

Vf

O/ 

W

N

mRI

W

Y

u

N

ca

W

O

w

c . 

i

U. 0

vo

0 ' 

u

u



U allW1CUIpjgl
l

7m

N

L

J

o} 

c

O

L

c

c '- 

E

o

E. 

00D

a

E ' 

r

L

y

j

m

m

O

w

Cm
r

o

v

o

p

ww'
o`

m

2

03
v > '

om

O => 

m

L

v

c

o

o

o

v

Y

c£ E

w7
c

n

E

L

E

o

E

w

L' 

HO
m

c

om`

oo
n

o

w

c

W ? 

N

m

p` > 

w

d

U

P

00

cm

a > 

o

w

N `- 

C

f0

C

Y

c

u > 

a

b0

N
L

N

w

U

w

v

U

E

N

o

E

i

O

Q " 

o

a

F

aL

Z

u

c

N % 

a) 

C

J

at{ •

L,, 

7 ••

N° 

m

Ecc
ID

ul

z

0

awmi

tO

N

3

vO

Q

OD

W

L

a

o

c

u~
i

ovmy

CD

m

N

C

Y

I

w 

n

W

EE

aa; 

o

ri

3

Ew

W

C

m

1

O

Y

m

T

0

d

w

C

J

L

7

Q

w— 

EE

0

H = 

o

w

w

Z

w

a

OL'' 
N
v 

E

V

m

n

0

2

v

E

v

EC
v

u

0

Y ° 

E

m

j

E

50
0

ri

o

o

E

a

L

awa

w

OV

u

o

W

c

o

m

W

p

w

a

m ¢ 

a

O

DI s colo

s. 

w

C  

PO

lTs

p

C

E

3

c

L

2

2u. 
m

m

c

w

C

O

a

Z

m

cL

Ew ° 

n

m > 

c

ai `

lo

E
c

w

m

o

y

o

i

w> 

2 

vw

o

cr

H

N

m _

u

O— 

oo

h

Q

w

L° 

o

f

m

w

E

l7

c

2

wCO 

a+' 

F

a

Ou

w

O

O

W '

D

r

p

w

w

m

O . 

n

fa

0

0.' 

N  w

C

O

w

W . 

ai

Ql ? 

7

m >

O

O

C ,

c7

G

N

o

OU '

A

2

p

0e' 

J

mU) 

u

c

1

l7

r

v

w

c  

E

a

ma

m  ° 

n

L" 

m

m

m

vii

o

o

Y

W 

p - 

C

N

W

d

C

C

w

E. 

C

C

C

hm

7

m

m

w

u

n

p

U> 
l.

1

E

o

tn, .

o

0.

1 ° ° 

w ° 

uv

o> 

a

a

c

H

L

p

E2 > 

a

v

a

o

m0

w

v

v

m

A

w

uLU
w> > 

m; 

v

a

a

U .

r° 

L

C

C2! 

U

m

L

n

w

N (

D

s ++ 

I

O > 

t

j

N ; }$ 

Q

cc

Z

CY

u

O

p  

c

J
Q
O

d

a

u

v

CL

Y

13

W

U

N

cr

I

O

mi

V) p.& 

y

t9a• 

a w

Q5

75

75

c

m;
v

U)' 

C  E

c
c

u

m

n

I

n

Z

m

g

3

m

c

y

c

a5

w  

m

N

E

m

m

0

m

N

a

E

c

a

c

C

E

a

E

w

wS

o

w

a

7u

C

E

u

N °

n

U

N

c

Yaaj

3

c

w

m

w

w

e

o

o

w

a

a

L

a

a° 

L.. 

m

w

E °

D

o

m

C

m

3° 

o

m

w

L° 

w

t; 

o

m

a

H
Q

c

n, 

w

A

m

n? 

m

w

N>

m

v

W

Ci+ 
O

m

VI

N

w

u

a

rW

a) 

a

u

Q

U

41
ccn

faw

n '

a

Y

E

w

ccu
f 

N

O

n

u

I

C

o

E

m

W

W

v

m

F

N

y

7LLQ

m

F

O

YZ
Q

C . en0 c

JQ

V

7

a

ai00

I

Q

7

U

oCL

o

U

w

N

2

O

DI s 

col
o
s. 

w

C  

PO

lTs

p

C

E

3

c

L

2

2u. 

m

m

c

w

C

O

a

Z

m

cL

Ew ° 

n

m > 

c

ai `

lo

E
c

w

m

o

y

o

i

w> 

2 

vw

o

cr

H

N

m _

u

O— 

oo

h

Q

w

L° 

o

f

m

w

E

l7

c

2

wCO 

a+' 

F

a

Ou

w

O

O

W '

D

r

p

w

w

m

O . 

n

fa

0

0.' 

N  w

C

O

w

W . 

ai

Ql ? 

7

m >

O

O

C ,

c7

G

N

o

OU '

A

2

p

0e' 

J

m
U) 

u

c

1

l7

r

v

w

c  

E

a

ma

m  ° 

n

L" 

m

m

m

vii

o

o

Y

W 

p - 

C

N

W

d

C

C

w

E. 

C

C

C

hm

7

m

m

w

u

n

p

U> 
l.

1

E

o

tn, .

o

0.
1 ° ° 

w ° 

uv

o> 

a

a

c

H

L

p

E2 > 

a

v

a

o

m0

w

v

v

m

A

w

uLU

w> > 

m; 

v

a

a

U .

r° 

L

C

C2! 

U

m

L

n

w

N (

D

s ++ 

I

O > 

t

j

N ; }$ 

Q

cc

Z

CY
u

O

p  

c

J
QO

d

a

u

v

CL

Y

13

W

U

N

cr

I

O

mi

V) p.& 

yt9a• 

cO

CE

v

U

E

p` 

m

d

E

5

w

C

L

m

wO

w

O

m

Y

O

a

ry

n '

C

a° .

i

v

a

3

E

Z

a

m

z

u

W

V

Q

A

A

a w

Q5

75

75

c

C  E

c
c

u

m

n

O. 

n

Z

mph
u, 

g

3

m

c

a5

w  

m

m
E

wE

c

w

N

c

Q

a

E

w

wS
u

a

U

a

c

E

w

E

m
v

v

a

a

L

am

M :, 

E

m

C

m

3° 

o

m

w

o

m

a

E > _ 

c

ou
2

3

c

aJ

w _ 

F

U °

wn

W

w

C

rW

a) 

a

u

Q

U

D

N

7

Y

rl

C

y

C

C

C

ccu

f NI

woE
E

o

w

1

0

E

m

40

T. 

U

Gka

L  

m

F

w

T12T

Q

7

E

J
Q

0
a

ai
00

I

Q

7

U

o

cO

CE

v

U

E

p` 

m

d

E

5

w

C

L

m

wO

w

O

m

Y

O

a

ry

n '

C

a° .

i

v

a

3

E

Z

a

m

z

u

W

V

Q

A

A

a

o

43

75

C  E

c
c

u

n

Z

mph
u, 

g

3

w

a5

fa

N

m

E

c

Q

a

E

w

wS
u

a

u
O
1

H

m

w

a > 

E

w

O

v

v

a

a

L

a

E

m

C

m

3° 

o

m

w

r

m

C

3

c

aJ

w _ 

Q2
a,

e5>

ECY

a' 

Ix

a) 

a

u

Q

U

w

m

O

ccu
f 

7

E

m

m
Q

7

E

W

a

ai00

o

U

w

a 

7

Y

Q

u75 '
7

cO

CE

v

U

E

p` 

m

d

E

5

w

C

L

m

wO

w

O

m

Y

O

a

ry

n '

C

a° .

i

v
a

3

E

Z

a

m

z

u

W

V

Q

A

A

t

V) 

o

g

3

ca5

fa

N

t' 

E  

Q

CDa

m

Q' 

O

U

N

L

a
L

C

3

cn

c

U

O

m

a' 

m

G1

E

E

m

m
Q

a

m



Ey97

ratcmCLLZ + W1. 

CL

I 

E

N

O

O

UJ

C

C

CO

DD

N0 (

UCS

U

Z

C '

6— 

cm
rn

m

c

290905
r- 

N

co

V

U-) 

CCfA(
CM

m

cc

O'

co

coq

rnc

n

No8(
00

v

a

v

e

m

C
W

H

a

EEE
0

p

L
a) 

0) 

0

N

a

CMO

cu

N

dO
y'
p

J

C

5

E

Cc
d

CD

X

0

0

a) 

C

m

i =

3

@

N

U

U) 

O

m

to

VI

a

OECN)
m

N

i2:

2>= ~

O

A

WYcc
rz

mN-
0 

V

C. 

CD

wacaw

Q) 

L

4= 

C:

3

22E5nv2U
cw

F-

EO5S
U . . . . . 

ratcmCLLZ + W1. 

CL

I 

E

N

O

O

UJ

C

C

CO

DD

N0 (

UCS

U

Z

C '

6— 

cm
rn

m

c290905

r- 

N

co

V

U-) 

J

ua

c

E

rn
c

n

ou

Q

0

v

a

v

e

O

dN

spyp
e

E

NUo

E

E

O

ID

C

m

@

N

U

L° 

houk

in

a) 

V

u

A

L 

v

O

7

O

N

Q

7

N

L

Q) 

L

4= 

E

u

a) 

O

Q
N

O

mP

j

N` 

y

rr

S

y

O

p

O

j

N

N

2

E« 

si

cn;

a) 

m « 

N

o

sE

t

c

2

a)

ME

K

mU
m

IEE

3a

3Aa

3A3o 

4

r ° 

a`
i

O

V

t._

TO

N

Z

C1
N

N

a) 

U

N

O

2

voE

G

l6 .

N ) 

T

Q

0>> 

a) 

a_ 

C

O

a1

z

yU
m

r, 

N

L) 

N

UO) 

a

x

L

W

W

H

C

N

lNa

i

J

1- 
ffO

U  

W

o

u  NO

2

ul • 

G

N

ua

c

E

o

ti

n

ou

Q

0

v

v

O
Q% C

E

O

C

m

M

L° 

houk

in

V

u

u

L 

v

EA
v

Y

E

u

ua
d

aD«
W

mP

j

N` 0vva

N

yy _» 
Y

d

Z

2

E« 

si

Y/ 

m « 

N

o

sE

t

c

2

w !

no

raE
of 

r

IEE

3a

3Aa

3A3o 

4

r ° 

LiA3 
o

N

1- 

ff
O

U  W

o

u  N

O

2ul • 

G

N



u
DI= 

0LLIq5GU

E2k

EM

cE

c

ktio

c

i

E

Ln

co

m

cou o

24-
0

f

bb

a

o

0

2

k

ui

m

a

E

I

E

t

E»( 

k\ 

t

z

E

k

3

i

L

c

e, 

g

3

4

W

c

LU

2

E

z

k

I

E

w

4

u

a

k_ 

r

k

2§ m 

m3

A

u

V

o

I

uf

ow

a

k

uE

E

3

2

S

L- 

2// 

2

2

c

m

7

@

S

k

o

j° 

2

C

2

2

k

uE

E

0

f§ 

M

t

75

3:° 

k

2

z0

2

c

E

@

k

bx

c

E

tA

E

c2

ou

8

2

8

8

Z/° 

2

2( 

2

2

L

k

2

u

A

C

LU

o

e

g

u

u« 

a

o

o

G

o

22

FA

A

k

uJ

az

o

cc

V

CE

w

u

DI= 

0LLIq5GU



0000JNH

R

Ndd

c

w

ry

m

C

O

a°

a

m

Vi

L, C

U) 

OvV
3

D

o

Lata

M

w

8

a

f0

8

Cy
C

o

co

m

CL

3

Em

S

7

C

y

ENc

W

Q

0000JNH

D

N

NE

ry

O

M

w

8

vNN

CL

3

Em

S

7

C

y

ENc

W

Q

C

OLli

C

N

O

C

K

V
m

5

N

a

u

U

0000JNH

C
l0

E
Y
0

H

N

NE

c

o

oma= 

0

o

y

aNa

CL

3

Em

7

C

y

ENc

C

O

COO

E

aa

o

C

C

N

O

C

K

c

5

N

a

u

U

o

C

N

0

d
C

a1

0

OV
7

Y

a

N

yOl
C

7

C

Uy
a) 

0

C

Ya

U

C

0

Y
y

C1

C

C

U

O .

N

N

d
YO

y

O

D

m

H

r

U

L
7

U

C

O

a

2

c

L.CC0

YNH

UOU

U

D

N

d

5 

a

Y  

N

C

6

p

d

ova' 
m

Z

F 

Oa) 
U

U

Y

U

U

S? 

O

n

cmN

C
l0EY0H

N

NE

c

o

y

c}

o

0

o

c

CL

3

Em

7

C

y

N

y

a
C

C

C

a1

p

d

N

y

U

N

a) 

7

C

S] 

c

5

N

a

u

N
a) 

y

U

O. 

o

y

Eo0
D. 

D_ 

Ol

U
C

7

Ca

t

N  

1C

m

a7 :

5

N

N@
L

a7

7

4i

N

U

C

E

O

c
c

yo

E

m

C ; 

aci

a

0

i0: 

L .

0

w2

L

N

U

C

U

ay

T

O

L

O

O. 

7

y

Z

F 

Oa) 

U

U

Y

U

U

S? 

O

n

cmN



22own
o.& 

K\ 

C> 

6c

ID

QL\\ 

Co

a) .

2

fƒ/ 

K/

2km
0k} 

3

3§}

J

o0) 

7uk\\ 

LL

Im

s

G  

D/ 

k

k\()"

a 

f{

7(

k

mU)- 

k2

22own

o.& 

K\ 

C> 

6
c

f

CO

E= 

r

Co

a) .

2

fƒ/ 

K/

2km

0k} 

3

3§}

Jo0) 

ES
E;

R

G  

D/ 

I / 

mU)- 

k2

fc

cm

o£ 

kI

22own
o.& 

K\ 

C> 

6c

f

CO

E= 

r

Co

a) .

2

fƒ/ 

K/

2km
0k} 

3

3§}

Jo0) 

kG  

f

ze
o£ 



02asa15-1, 

LUea
j

10

SSBUOAI139113



s

al

co

m

o

TN

EC4
o

r

M. .

15

c

N

U

D

C . 

m

nr
G

W > 

m

F

y

E
o

m

o

f

d

c

ul . 

am

d

n

uE°' 

O)

m

of

m

X

U_ 

w — 

M. 

1)_' 

U

m

m

Cr

a)>

U

YY

p 

3a

Oc

N

cmi ` 

O

E

w,

E

rn°

r-)

N

v'
E

y

N

y3

a7 > 

yEo
a7c

EmE

Omo
y

A. 

Eo

wow
a7

da

Vo

C•

E

om

Ao0

Cyo .

po

R

v

c

O

y

m

t

a

V

r

z.
m

0y

L 0

D .

1

CL . 

Q
C

c

V? 

m

O.

L > 

r

N

m

0

C

O

A
N

O

JJ

yEama
m

L
c

N

oO
w

c

u

n

L2

Wodm- 
UUCcmaoM
N

c — 

m

m

p 

W

toornm 
03m

EL

c'

m« 

0

ma

Qm
co

Lm

f' 

c=

t.

o°' 

poU -
D

Z  

07UwEmmyE >(
OS °

p,

a

H

U

y

D

F -

N   

IN

IN

TUcOUQjiU

v

NO

4— 

N

W

r

tto
4- 

0Nm2
l

m

Z

Q7

C

c2

W

U) 

cIL

Um

O

w

1. 

C

V' J
Ja

I 

W

Z

c

g

Ix

i

C

m
e

c

O

10

N

pp

s

C

V

C

C

@  

C7e1

N

c

u

y

a) 

C  

y

U

m

T

C

L

N

a) 

C

U

7

O

co

C

C

C

aT
a) 

y

N

E

OT

a

Q

y

0 ° 

C

L

Q

O

a) 

o

E

C

c

Q

t

m

0 _ 

N

U () 

d

d

V

YO

co

E

U

U

O

m

O

c

E

a3

E

r

a - 

EEm
m

m

0) 

m

O

C

E

U

OIL

N

C

N

fa

N

Q

c

m

a) 

n7-. 

O

Q

o

U

ow
rn

L

E

a

7 

C

N

d

E

Q

m '

v

co

L

y.

t

m

m 

v

d

o3

a) 

t

N

C

C

Um

d

EQ

U

m

E

L

U

N

N

7

a) 

Q

n

7

Ny

NN

yo

3

f' 

c

m

a

o

E

d

In

n

E

C

0) 

O 

M

O- 

C

d

0

0

0

c

Ny ° 

L

0

y

N

Q

w

a

C

W

O

d

Q

fa

E

O

N

U

7

Y6

g

m

o

o

f

2 `

m

N

c

ar

C

E 

Q,

W

d

g

v

E

o@
E

tO

0a) ='

u

m. 

E

m

N

a

m

U

9

E

O

y

Q

a) 

m

0  

a) > ` a) 

O ' 

fn

U

cm) 

A

E

U

U

U

a-

iq

Y 

c

0

IN

NU

c

g

Ix

i

OS) 
c

O
70

C

0

U

m

s

a) 

N

C

N

W ° 

Q

N

In

N

C  

y

TO

m

T

C

L

N

C

C

C

CQ

N

E

OT

0

O

a) 

o

E

C

c

Q

t

m

Oa) 

d

d

V

y

mCc
O

U

E

a3

E

w

U

OIL

o

ow
rn

O

mQ

co

cO

UK

d

o3

N

d

i 
0

C

N

E

Ny

NN

C

cc

E

ai

3

O

o

C

0) 

7

m

a

Y
N

w

a

Wr

Um

ar

C

E 

U

tOoC
N

C ° 

U

R

d

Q

Y 

a
U

IN

NU

E

wEw 

W .

Y

TaD
L

N

0

N

d

a

ncU

N

N

a)

cm

ii

H

IN

g

Ix

E

5

c

O

m
N

s

JppXPi

C

cc

N

7

N

N

y

N

C

C

C

U

O

OT

N

E > 

a) 

o

E

C

c

Q

t

m

O
a) 

N

7Q

y

m

Cc

O

U

O

C

a1

7

a3

E

1

T
m

U

Y. C

c

o

Y

O

ti

3

E

N

o3

E

I.-- 

rn

Qand

N

m

m

mm

NN

C

ccE

ai

o

p

U

C  

U

C

7

m

a

YN

d

m

Qm

md
o

C

E 

Z

Q

7

oCN

C ° 

U

O

o

Y

N

C

V

t

y

E

a
U

a

c

a) 

U

N > 

WZ

3CSE

U

N

N

a)

cm

U0

c

O

C

O

042

Q

N

E

C

c

m

m

N

aa)) 

n

cion
o- 

C :

3

d

y

O

7N

N
L

0

W

iLa) 
Y

O

N

L

CN

a

ma) t.. 

0N

p

N

0

O > 

Y

as

F' 

C

mo

r

IN

C

3

m

W -

22a) cLm

Ny
oc

aico

aN)

L

a) 

m

U

C

C• 

a

N

y

a

Z

G

m

m

X

O

a) 

N

y

E

E

E

o> 

L

O

LX03

i°

pm

I

W

V

I

g

Ix

E

i
JppXPi

C

cc

N

7

N

N

N

@

T

N

C

C

U

O

E > 

a) 

o

E

COa) 

N

0 _

0

C

a3

E

1

O

N

Y. 

C

c

c

N

N

N

E

N

m

c

N

O
o

p

U

C  

U

C

7

m

a

YN

N

c

O

0

m  

ma

C

E 

O

y

Q

7

c

d

m

U

O

o

Y

N

7O' 

y

N

CO

U

L) 

c

0

m

c

O

T

C

O

N > 

m

N

m

m

E

u

U0

c

O

C

O

042

Q

N

E

C

c

m

m

N

aa)) 

a

C :

3

19

O

w

o

fA

y

Fu

0

N

O

Q. 
M

Q

Q
7

CN

N

N

o

V

Y

as

IN

I

t6

a) 

Q

@

N

NN

N7

m

Oto

E > 

N

i1

a1

ou

YO

Y. C

@ - 

U

c

N

N

W

c

oo

E

N

U

c

m 

o

p

O

0

7

m

a

N

c

O

0

y

at

c

7

Q

7

r

CD

U

O

CO

c

c

r

T

C

O

i1

7

r

m

a

fa

O

do U0

fav

N

Q

C

m

c

m

m

N

a

O

O

CL

w

o

O

0

O

Q. 

CL

H

o- 

w

TNN
@

C

a

U

M

Q
U

N

L

w

c ' 

c

Co, 

a3

O3

N

a) 

N

N

E

N

N

pl
70

c . C > 

c

41

o
o- 
3C

j

O) 

UN

o

N

R

W

c

aTi

o « 

C

J ++ 

L) 

H

c

0 '
a) 

3

dl

y « 

O

E

0. 

A? 

3c
a)

m

c

O

Ta) 

c > 

o

O

0 =$ 

u

C  

Mn

O

U

C

C

mle DaU,
y



1 of 10 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JANUARY 22, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on January 22, 2024.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Gaylor requested the addition of Item J. Resolution Authorizing Applications for 
Federal and/or State Assistance for the Elmwood Terrace Big Ditch Project to the Consent Agenda. Councilman Boyette 
made a motion to adopt the agenda as amended. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously 
carried. 

Old Business. 
Item a. Parking Update. Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager shared a copy of the proposed placards with 

Council. Mr. Livingston shared businesses would apply online for a certain number of placards. Greg Mills, Business and 
Property Specialist shared the proposed placards would allow customers an extra 4 hours to park and businesses would 
receive 4-5 cards each. Councilwoman Weeks discussed extending the placards for all businesses, not just salons, spas and 
tattoo parlors. Councilwoman Jones suggested implementing a Policy and Procedure for parking passes. Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews asked about enforcement on Saturdays. Mayor Gaylor discussed striping and lighting. Councilman Boyette 
discussed lighting, safety concerns and police presence downtown.  Jonathan Perry, Engineering, shared information about 
lighting issues in downtown public parking lots. 

Councilwoman Taylor made a motion to keep the soft roll out going for 60 days instead of 90 days and at the end of that 60 
days, let’s go back and look at it again and see if some of these issues have been resolved and if not, we look at what 
happens instead of 90 days, 60 days. Council discussed the extension of the roll out date and confirmed it would be the end 
of March 2024. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously carried. Mayor Gaylor added the 
extension would allow for time for improvements to be made in off street parking in downtown Goldsboro. He directed the 
Assistant City Manager to take this time to get off street parking a little more desirable and if there needs to be financial 
adjustments, to bring them to Council.   

Item b. Goldsboro Police Department Pay Discussion. Mike West, Police Chief shared a presentation from 
September 2023 regarding police pay (Exhibit A), status of the department and current crime statistics.  Council discussed 
crime and police pay.  Councilman Boyette asked Chief West to come back to the next meeting and for council to make a 
decision at the next meeting. Councilman White asked for the plan to be detailed. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews discussed the 
city’s financial status/budget. Mayor Gaylor asked Chief West to come back at the next meeting with numbers for a March 1 
start and what the ramifications would be for the next fiscal year. Mayor Gaylor recommended a pay study for the entire 
organization. Councilwoman Taylor asked Chief West to add to Plan A, for officers who have been with the city 15-17 
years, for compression purposes.  

Council consensus was to add the police pay discussion to the work session on February 12 as Old Business. 

Item c. Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion.  Mayor Gaylor shared after consulting with 
councilmembers, he has a potential list for appointments.  Council further discussed the appointments. Council discussed the 
Goldsboro Tourism Council. Ms. Getz will research the General Statute regarding the Tourism Board to see if the statue 
allows a change in the make-up of the board. Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the slate as amended and 
discussed. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  

Commission on Community Relations and Development 
Reappoint - Washea Lancaster  
Appoint - Phyllis Merritt-James 
Appoint - Tavis Lofton 

Item A2



2 of 10 
 

Appoint - Jeremy Whitley 
  
Historic District Commission 
Reappoint - Thomas Lockamy        
Reappoint - Richard Carl Best       
Reappoint - Fritz Knack (Full member) 
Appoint - Paul Saylors 
Appoint - Judith McMillian (Alternate)          
 
Recreation Advisory Commission 
Reappoint - Stephanie Brown   
Reappoint - Iris P. Robinson  
Appoint - Ricardo Ballard    
Appoint - Anthony Slater    
Appoint - Charles Henry   
 
Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appoint - Joel Bledsoe  
Appoint - Crystal Hill  
Appoint - Cynthia Green       
           
Goldsboro Planning Commission  
Reappoint - Duke Cox     
Appoint - Glen Barwick  

 
Goldsboro Tourism Council  
Reappoint - Shelia Exum (At-large) 
Appoint - Jill Mills (At-large) 
Appoint – Roshonda Jones (At-large) 
Appoint - Nikkie Cox (Hotelier) 

 
Mayor Gaylor also shared information on a proposed appointment committee which will be made up of three council 
members.  
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Items E – J on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 
following:  

 Item E.  Termination of Municipal Maintenance Agreement with NCDOT for Computerized Traffic Signal 
System. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager. Mr. Perry shared the city will still 
maintain 16 signals and the department installs signs and markings.  
 
Mayor Gaylor shared the state pays some percentage of the salary but not benefits or equipment. He also shared the city will 
get a position back and office space at city hall. Mr. Perry shared we need to sign the current agreement. DOT is aware that 
we're going to give the signals back July 1st but there are reimbursements for work that’s been completed out in the field, but 
we cannot get the reimbursements until the agreement is signed.  
 

Item F.  Federal Emergency Management Association’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Application. 
The item was presented by Brnadon Holland, Assistant Fire Chief.  

  
City Manager Salmon shared this will be a commitment in the next budget that we will have to fund, if approved, but 90% 
gets paid for, which is a great thing.  
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:53 p.m. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on January 22, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 



3 of 10 
 

Councilman Rod White 
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

  
Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular 

Meeting of December 18, 2023 and the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 8, 2024. The motion 
was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 
Item B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Demetrius Cogdell as an Employee of 

the City of Goldsboro for More Than 19 Years. Resolution Adopted. Demetrius Cogdell retires on February 1, 2024 as a 
Solid Waste Operations Supervisor, with more than 19 years of service with the Sanitation Division of the Goldsboro Public 
Works Department. Demetrius began his career on July 24, 2002 as a Laborer II with the Public Works Department. On 
December 10, 2003, Demetrius was promoted to Motor Equipment Operator II with the Public Works Department. On 
November 28, 2005, Demetrius was promoted to Motor Equipment Operator III with the Public Works Department. On 
November 10, 2006, Demetrius resigned as Motor Equipment Operator III with the Public Works Department. On 
September 26, 2008, Demetrius returned to the City of Goldsboro as an Equipment Operator II with the Public Works 
Department. On March 25, 2015, Demetrius was promoted to Heavy Equipment Operator with the Public Works 
Department. On August 15, 2018, Demetrius was promoted to Solid Waste Operations Supervisor with the Public Works 
Department, where he has served until his retirement. Demetrius has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public 
servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro.  The 
Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of 
the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Demetrius Cogdell their appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him 
to the City over the years and express to Demetrius Cogdell our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and 
good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 

effect from and after this 22nd day of January, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor presented the retirement resolution to Demetrius Cogdell. Mr. Cogdell was joined by Rick Fletcher, 

Public Works Director. 
 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to adopt the following entitled resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-5 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 
DEMETRIUS COGDELL AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 19 YEARS” 

 
Public Hearings.  
Item C. SU-18-23 Arcade and Game Room (with no ABC Permits). Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. 

The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Assistant Planning Director after being properly sworn in.   

ADDRESS: 507 East Ash Street. 

PARCEL #: 3509164240 

OWNER: Fazwa Alziadi 

APPLICANT: Fazwa Alziadi 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of an arcade and game room with no ABC permits on 
property located within the Central Business Zoning District. This district was established to maintain and strengthen the 
concentration of commercial, service, residential, and institutional uses that serve the entire community and region. The 
district encourages a mix of high intensity pedestrian-oriented uses compatibly designed and arranged around the existing 
compact core.  

According to the City of Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance, Section 5.4, Table of Permitted Uses, arcades and 
game rooms with no ABC permits are permitted only after obtaining a Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. 
The UDO has no additional standards for which arcade and game rooms must meet to be considered a permitted use in this 
district. 

The proposed arcade and game room will be located within the existing retail strip center located on the northeast side of the 
intersection of North Kornegay Street and East Ash Street. This property is approximately 25,000 square foot corner lot 
with driveway access to North Kornegay Street and East Ash Street. The existing retail center is approximately 8,000 square 
feet area. Approximately 1,000 square feet will be used by the arcade and game room. The retail strip center has 
approximately 27 on-site parking spaces to be shared by all the uses in the retail center that include a laundry mat, hair 
salon, and retail tobacco shop.  



4 of 10 
 

The City’s Land Use Plan identifies this property as being within the Mixed-Use Downtown land use designation. The 
Mixed-Use Downtown designation is an identified area that maintains and strengthens the concentration of commercial 
services that will serve the entire region. The goal of this district is to safeguard the unique architectural character, social 
activities and cultural value of the Downtown while promoting its continued success and redevelopment. 

The proposed arcade and game room was described by the applicant as a family-oriented place of entertainment that would 
provide classic coin-operated video games and may include pinball. A City Council approved special use permit for an 
arcade and game room will not allow for the use of electronic gaming machines that include internet sweepstakes, 
traditional bingo, or bingo-based video games, because these games have their own use category within the City of 
Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance. Hours of operation and the number of employee’s has been provided by the 
applicant.  

Mr. Helmer shared the following comments: The requested place of entertainment will provide classic coin-operated video 
games and may include pinball. A City Council approved special use permit for an arcade and game room will not allow for 
the use of electronic gaming machines that include internet sweepstakes, traditional bingo or bingo-based video games 
because these games have their own use category within the City of Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance. 

The retail strip center has 17 parking spaces to be shared among the existing laundromat, tobacco store and hair salon. The 
proposed use of arcade and game room can be considered a low traffic generating use and adequate on-site parking appears 
to exist at the site. 

The applicant has not stated what the hours of operation will be. 

Staff has distributed this proposed special use permit to the Goldsboro Fire Department for their review.   

Staff is recommending a condition be that no outdoor activities are to take place associated with the arcade and game room 
with no ABC Permit. All activities and events are to occur inside of the structure. 

Council does have the ability to continue the hearing or place conditions upon its approval as long as Council is able to 
conclude that evidence exists in the record to support the condition. The Mayor of Goldsboro shall sign the Order to 
Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and deliberation. 

Councilwoman Weeks commented: So, the applicant has not stated again what hours of operation will be? 

Mr. Helmer stated no, he has not.  

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the 
Special Use Permit should be issued. 

1.  Councilman Boyette made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman White and unanimously carried. 

2. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining 
or abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously carried. 

3. Councilwoman Taylor made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within 
the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilman White and unanimously carried. 

4. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro    
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously carried. 

 
Item D. SU-1-24 Kennel and Pet Boarding. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. The item was presented 

by Mark Helmer, Assistant Planning Director after being properly sworn in.   

ADDRESS: 1001 North Berkeley Boulevard 

PARCEL #: 3519741687 

OWNER: Sauls Malissa B Heirs 

APPLICANT: Tyler Brennan 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to establish a business that will include kennel and pet boarding services. The 
property is located in the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The General Business district is established to 
accommodate the widest range of uses providing general goods and services to the community. The district is intended to 
promote high quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area. There is no 
minimum lot size. 

According to the City’s Unified Ordinance (UDO) Article 5, Table 5.4 Permitted Uses, Kennels and Pet Boarding are 
permitted as a Special Use in the General Business zoning district, provided that City Council, acting as the Board of 
Adjustment votes to issue the permit.  

Frontage: 200 feet on North Berkeley Boulevard 

400 feet on US 70 onramp 



5 of 10 
 

Area:  Lot area 26,590 square feet  

Enclosed building area 9,500 Square feet   

Zoning:   General Business  

Vacant commercial building that was once used for an automobile repair facility known as Saul’s Wheel and Alignment & 
Motor Service.  

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Commercial land use designation. This designation was given based 
off of proximity to existing major transportation corridors and commercial development. The designation encourages in-fill 
development at existing commercial sites. 

Mr. Helmer shared the following comments: If a special use permit is approved, the approved use will be a change of use 
and will trigger site plan review by the TRC. The project will be required to show compliance with the City of Goldsboro 
UDO to include landscaping, sidewalks, striped parking and ADA accessible parking spaces. These site improvements will 
be a condition of staff approval. Separate sign permits will be required. 

In accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance, a special use permit is required to establish a kennel and pet 
boarding facilities in the General Business zoning business and are subject to the following supplemental standard of the 
City of Goldsboro UDO, Article 5.5 and include:   

1. Any building housing animals shall be located a minimum of one hundred and fifty feet from any residentially 
zoned or developed property.    

2. Animal waste shall not be stored outdoors within one hundred feet of any property line.  

3. Areas used for exercising or training of animals shall be securely fenced to prevent the animals from straying.  

4. A security fence at least six feet high shall enclose any kennel that is not wholly enclosed with a building. 

The applicant has provided a site plan demonstration that all supplemental standards of the City of Goldsboro UDO can and 
will be met. In addition, the applicant has provided the following information:  

• Hours of operation will be Monday-Sunday 6:30AM – 8:00PM  

• Employees: 5  

• Parking: 14 existing parking spaces 

Council does have the ability to continue the hearing or place conditions upon its approval as long as Council is able to 
conclude that evidence exists in the record to support the condition. The Mayor of Goldsboro shall sign the Order to 
Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and deliberation. 

Councilwoman Taylor asked what use to be in this building?  

Mr. Helmer stated an automotive repair facility. The existing building has two buildings, and both the buildings have 
multiple bays for automotive repair. Extensive remodeling will occur. 

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not the 
Special Use Permit should be issued. 

1. Councilman Boyette made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously carried. 

2. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously carried. 

3.  Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within 
the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously carried. 

4. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilman White and unanimously carried. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Clark Boydston shared comments and concerns regarding the condition of sidewalks and streets (Exhibit B).  
2. Jill Poythress shared concerns regarding drug and crime issues.  
3. Chris Mohr shared concerns regarding parking for the apartment complex on John Street. 
4. Katelyn Williams shared comments regarding the Small Batch Craft Event on the agenda. 
5. Bran Byrd shared concerns regarding aggressive panhandling and comments regarding the growth of the city. 
6. Lauren Sasser Britt shared concerns regarding downtown parking.  
7. Mindy Grady shared concerns regarding downtown parking.  
8. Willie Battle shared concerns regarding storm drains, sidewalks and the city’s street sweeper. 

 



6 of 10 
 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Item J. Resolution Authorizing Applications for Federal and/or State Assistance for the Elmwood Terrace Big Ditch Project 
was added to the Consent Agenda during the Adoption of the Agenda. Councilman Boyette moved the items on the Consent 
Agenda, Items E - J be approved.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and a roll call vote resulted in all 
members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item E. Termination of Municipal Maintenance Agreement with NCDOT for Computerized Traffic Signal 
System. Approved. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Manager.  
 
The City of Goldsboro entered into a Municipal Maintenance Agreement with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation on February 20, 2018 to contract with the Department for the installation, repair, operations, and 
maintenance of highway signs and markings, electric traffic signals and other traffic control devices on State Highway 
System streets within the City of Goldsboro.  

 
The agreement further set forth the basis for reimbursement of expenses incurred in conjunction with the operation of the 
system, including pro-rated salary of the City’s Traffic Engineer. 

 
The City’s Traffic Engineer position was vacated on March 17, 2023. The City has advertised for this vacant position since 
April 2023 with no success in receiving qualified applicants. Due to recent resignations/retirements, the City’s Traffic 
Signal staff stands at two employees.  

 
Staff has been in discussion with NCDOT concerning the termination of the municipal agreement. NCDOT has concurred in 
the termination of this agreement as of July 1, 2024 at which time, NCDOT will assume the responsibilities. The municipal 
agreement states that the agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice.  
  
Staff has considered the factors surrounding the Traffic Signal Division and recommends termination of the agreement.   

 
It was recommended that Council concur in the termination of the Municipal Maintenance Agreement with NCDOT for 
Computerized Traffic Signal System effective July 1, 2024. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes) 

 
Item F. Federal Emergency Management Association’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Application. 

Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Ron Stempien, Fire Chief and Brandon Holland, Assistant Fire Chief.   
 

The Goldsboro Fire Department has been notified that the AFG grant has prioritized emergency communications in this 
year’s funding cycle.  Therefore, the Goldsboro Fire Department is looking to replace all 40 of their single band Harris 
XG75 portable radios.  The Harris XG75 radios have been in service since 2010. These radios will be completely 
discontinued and unserviceable. Therefore, the Goldsboro Fire Department is looking to purchase 40 new dual band radios 
to replace all current portable radios.   

 
The total amount of the grant application is $398,483.20.  The City of Goldsboro would be responsible for a 10% match of 
the awarded funds.  The City’s responsibility would be $39,848.32 upon award of grant. The Fire Department will be 
requesting the necessary matching funds in the FY25 budget, as awards will not be announced until June 2024 and continue 
weekly until September 2024.  

 
It was recommended that the following entitled resolution be adopted supporting the Goldsboro Fire Department applying 
for this grant. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-6 “A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION’S ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT (AFG) APPLICATION” 

 
Item G.  Updating Section 54.05: Stormwater Utility Service Fees, Rates and Fee Schedule of the Code of 

Ordinances. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director.   
 
Section 54.05 of the City’s Code of Ordinances explains the stormwater rate system and associated fees for all customers.  
As such, any rate or fee changes require an official ordinance update.   

  
The City maintains a “Manual of Fees and Charges” that is reviewed and updated annually as a part of the budget ordinance. 
Including the stormwater rates and fees in the City’s Manual of Fees and Charges as part of the budget ordinance would 
ensure they are reviewed annually. Additionally, any future updates would not require a separate ordinance amendment to 
be brought before City Council for approval.   
 



7 of 10 
 

It was recommended that Council approve that stormwater rates and fees be included in the City’s “Manual of Fees and 
Charges” and adopt the suggested revisions to Section 54.05: Stormwater Utility Service Fees, Rates and Fee Schedule of 
the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances, removing the rates and fees as outlined in the following entitled Ordinance. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 54: STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

 
Item H. Request Authorization to Purchase a Tandem Dump Truck. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented 

by Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director.   
 

The Stormwater Division has two tandem dump trucks – year models 2004 and 2009.  Due to their age and condition, a 
replacement tandem dump truck was authorized to be purchased in the FY23-24 budget.   

 
Purchase of the dump truck has been delayed pending the City’s decision regarding whether debt service would be used to 
acquire equipment authorized to be purchased in the FY23-24 budget. Debt service requires Local Government Commission 
(LGC) approval while on the Unit Assistance List (UAL). 

 
If we order the dump truck today, it will be scheduled for delivery no earlier than 10 - 12 months.  Piedmont Truck Center 
Inc. can provide a dump truck, through the NC Sheriff’s Association, for $171,960 plus NC highway use tax, tag and title 
fees or approximately $180,000.  The Stormwater Utility Fund has sufficient funds to cover the direct purchase.    

 
It was recommended that Council approve the purchase of the Stormwater Division’s Tandem Dump Truck from Piedmont 
Truck Center, Inc., through the North Carolina Sherriff’s Association, for $180,000 in the FY23-24 budget. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes)  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-7 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A TANDEM DUMP TRUCK” 

 
Item I. Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  
 
The various departmental reports for December 2023 were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that 

Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes) 
 
Item J. Resolution Authorizing Applications for Federal and/or State Assistance for the Elmwood Terrace Big 

Ditch Project. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager.  
 
The North Carolina State University Coastal Design Lab, as part of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
Building Resilient Infrastructure (BRIC) Grant, is making applications on behalf of the City of Goldsboro for Federal and/or 
State assistance in reference to the Elmwood Terrace Big Ditch Project. 

 
The Big Ditch Project entails implementation of nature-based solutions and infrastructure improvements along the Big Ditch 
stream corridor that includes approximately 2,300 linear feet of in-stream enhancements, three (3) roadway modifications 
(e.g. upgraded culverts), and an expanded area of restored floodplain and park space within the Elmwood Terrace property 
(comprised of 160 housing units owned and managed by the Goldsboro Housing Authority). 

 
The matching funds of $2,000,000 required from the City of Goldsboro have been appropriated in the State’s budget. 

 
The funding application to North Carolina Division of Emergency Management (NCDEM) is to request the additional 
$5,587,040 for the Big Ditch Project. The application process requires the City Council to authorize the City Manager and 
the Engineering Services Manager to execute and file applications for Federal and/or State assistance on behalf of the City 
of Goldsboro. As part of the submittal, three (3) governing officials are also required to sign the application. The deadline 
for filing applications is January 31, 2024. Any funding received would be brought back to the City Council for approval. 

 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager and the Engineering 
Services Manager to execute and file applications for Federal and/or State assistance on behalf of the City of Goldsboro for 
the Elmwood Terrace Big Ditch Project. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (7 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024–8 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND THE ENGINEERING 
SERVICES MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND FILE APPLICATIONS FOR FEDERAL AND/OR STATE ASSISTANCE FOR 
THE ELMWOOD TERRACE BIG DITCH PROJECT” 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Item K.  Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (March 1, April 5, and May 3). Approved. The 

item was presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
 



8 of 10 
 

The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is sponsoring a craft fair to be held downtown to support local artists and makers of 
goods.  

 
The events will be hosted from 6:00pm – 10:00pm on the 100 block of East Mulberry Street (between Center and John 
Street) on March 1st, April 5th, and May 3rd of 2024. The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is requesting the closure of the 
100 block of E. Mulberry Street between Center and John Street from 4:00pm – 11:00pm.  

  
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

Comments received from Goldsboro City Department Representatives, as noted on the submitted City of Goldsboro Special 
Events/Parade/Street Closing Permit Application. 

 
Downtown Goldsboro Representative Gregory Mills – “I am signing for Erin who is on leave.  Spoke with applicant on 
1/10/2024 about concerns with the street closure on Mulberry.” 

 
City Manager Tim Salmon – “This request involves multiple for-profit events that should take place at the HUB or Freedom 
Field.  I am concerned about the precedent this would set for other for-profit events on any street downtown.”  

 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closing of the 100 block of E. Mulberry Street 
between Center and John Street as stated above. 
 
Council discussed the street closing request.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion to approve the street closing request. The motion was seconded by 

Councilman White. Mayor Gaylor, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilwoman Taylor and Councilman White voted for the 
motion. Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette and Councilwoman Weeks voted against the motion. The motion passed 
4:3.    

 
City Manager’s Report. City Manager Salmon thanked council members and city staff that put together the special 

meeting on the 18th. He shared he looks forward to the council retreat in February.   
 
Ceremonial Documents. 
 Item L. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Troy Conner as an Employee of the City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 25 Years. Resolution Adopted. Troy Connor retires on February 1, 2024 as a Traffic 
Supervisor, with more than 25 years of service with the Goldsboro Engineering Department. Troy began his career on 
December 9, 1998 as a Building and Traffic Maintenance Worker with the Public Works Department. On July 18, 2001, 
Troy was promoted to Building and Traffic Maintenance Electrician with the Public Works Department. On January 30, 
2007, Troy was promoted to Building and Traffic Maintenance Supervisor with the Public Works Department. On 
November 4, 2009, Troy was demoted to Signal System Maintenance Supervisor with the Engineering Department. On 
February 23, 2022, Troy was reclassified to Traffic Supervisor with the Engineering Department where he has served until 
his retirement. Troy has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and 
respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to 
Troy Connor their appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years and express to Troy 
Connor our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 

effect from and after this 22nd day of January, 2024. 
 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to adopt the following entitled resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilman Boyette and unanimously carried. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-9 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY TROY 
CONNOR AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 25 YEARS” 

 
Item M. Black History Month Proclamation 
Read by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed the month of February 2024 as BLACK 

HISTORY MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and encourage all citizens to observe this month by participating and 
supporting all festivities celebrating the proud heritage of African Americans. 

 
Item N. American Heart Month Proclamation 
Read by Councilwoman Taylor: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed the month of February 2024 as AMERICAN 

HEART MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and called upon the people of Goldsboro to increase their awareness and 
understanding of heart disease and to observe this month with appropriate activities and programs. 



9 of 10 
 

Item O. Bill Graham Recognition Proclamation 
Read by Councilman White: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed, January 19, 2024, as a day of celebration and 

recognition to BILL GRAHAM for all of his years of service to the City of Goldsboro, County of Wayne, and our Nation. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman White had no comments.   
 
Councilwoman Weeks stated the following: I just want to say hello to all the team at the Parks and Recreation 

department. This Council employed me to go out to the Parks and Recreation department and visit their Ash Street office 
location and also their maintenance division. Our goal, our desire as a Council is to make contact with as many employees 
this year as we can, so I just want to thank all of you, mayor pro tem, mayor, all the council for the goodies that you 
provided me and thank you so much.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews stated the following: Not too long ago I got a chance to ride on a trash truck with one of the 

hardest working men in in the department and I can't just single him out because they are all extremely hard working. I 
wanted to show them my support and actually see the day-to-day operation, so when we have Rick come before us talking 
about how important it is to get a truck, I can actually see why it's important to get a truck and to see our men and women go 
out there, go above and beyond what the job description says. It was just really great to see, it was an extremely great 
experience. If you follow my Councilwoman page, or if you don't, you can see. I posted a lot of pictures and my experience 
up there. Thank you, Mayor. Y’all have a good night. 

 
Councilwoman Taylor stated the following: I just would like to say that, let it be known that I want you guys to know 

that I'm aware of the streets and sidewalks within our city and especially in my district. I have a big problem there and so I 
wanted to let it be known that we hear you and we appreciate your input, and we are going to work on that. 

 
Councilman Boyette stated the following: I echo those same remarks as the Councilwoman next to me. We are really 

aware of the challenges that the city faces and we're here as a group to say we hear you and we're doing our very best to 
address these issues as quickly as possible. As you heard tonight, if those of you that were in the work session, we hear our 
downtown folks’ concerns, business owners as well as patrons, as well as employees of these businesses that the parking 
situation is a work in progress and there's a little ways left to go, which is why I was glad to see that the Council pushed out 
any enforcement for another couple of months till the hard working folks behind the scenes can continue to try to work that 
situation out into a manner that's favorable for all concerned. So, I was happy to see that happen. We're aware of the crime 
concerns, we're aware of those things. There's a lot of things that have been spoken to that citizens are concerned about. 
That bottom line boils back down to staffing and you've heard some of that tonight, both in the work session as well as here 
that we have X concern and that concern is primarily due to, in my opinion, a shortage of staff to address those concerns. 
Why we're short of staff, that's a multitude of different reasons and as I also have mentioned at practically every meeting 
since being sworn in, I absolutely am committed to our law enforcement concerns, our public safety concerns. We have a lot 
to address and I'm looking forward to bringing that to a vote at our next meeting, getting the chief what he needs with his 
department and guess what, there's fourteen other departments I believe that we've got to be concerned with once we can get 
the Police department taken care of and our chief in a position where he can staff his department back up and make this city 
safe. We have our sleeves rolled up and ready to move to the next concern and we're going to tackle these concerns and 
we're going to get them done and please understand that we hear you and we're here to get things done. I also want to just 
throw out that I, along with every council member here, attended the recent MLK event. What a wonderful event that was 
and I thoroughly enjoyed that event and was glad that I was able to attend. I also attended the Chambers Annual Banquet 
this past Friday night. Congratulations to those winners at that event, that was a great event. Last but not least, well two 
things, last but not least, then I'll say that again, a big thank you to all of our almost 500 hard working city employees. Every 
single one are out there doing what they do and we need more, as I just spoke to, but we appreciate each and everyone of 
you and I know that the citizens of this city appreciate each and every one of those employees that work hard for all of us. 
Last but not least, I've heard a number of issues and people have come to me and expressed a number of concerns they have 
related to and I was going to bring this up at the retreat, but now it's as good a time as any, related to the appearance of this 
city. Whether it be sidewalks, whether it be junk cars in a yard that don't belong or whether it be grass on a lot or whatever, 
sidewalks, different things. The city used to have an Appearance Commission that is no longer in place because frankly 
there wasn't enough citizens that were interested in being a part of that Commission to keep things going. I've asked the 
clerk to get me some information, which she has, on that Commission and I'm going to be speaking more on that in the 
future and I would like to revive the Appearance Commission and at some point in time here in the near future I'm probably 
going to be sitting here in this position and asking the public to reach out to either myself or the clerk possibly about 
restarting that Appearance Commission. We're in a staffing situation, we've got to get staff back to address things, from a 
staff perspective, but please know that we are all concerned with your concerns and we're going to do everything we can to 
turn things around. Thank you, Mr. Mayor. 

 
Councilwoman Jones stated the following: First, Mr. Clark, I want you to know that as I'm district one city Council, 

all of us have, but I heard you in my district. Virginia St. north and south Virginia St. and Carolina we have already started 
working on those streets and we've already started working on Carolina. We did already put a sidewalk from West Haven to 
downtown which would accommodate those individuals that are on wheelchairs and on walkers and so we hear you and 
we're going to continue. We are very concerned about safety, not only the crime aspect of it, but safety in walking and being 
concerned about the disabled individuals that need to walk and that are on scooters and riders so, I did want you to know 
that north Carolina, north Virginia and south Virginia, we are already aware and we're on it but it takes time and I want to 
commend everybody that helped me with the sidewalk and getting that particular sidewalk done and we hear you sir. I also 



ca

U

o . 

N ° 

o ;;..

4ca
U

o

U

cd

0 °*' 

o

3

3

o

0

cn

rh

y

V1

N

fr •. {

y

Nw

co

u

ca

Y

V •

Y. 

p0 >, 

N . 

R

N  

3

U  

bq .  

O

O "

d  

O  '

S

bA  .

R. 

U

0

Y

m .

may ...

l ..

yy • /'' •' 

c• 

p

L"" 

O

y -

d .. 

U

Vi

V] 

U

i••

1 „

a

ca

O

p +-' 

Y

P. 

r-

1 •

Y

Y

Y

Y •

r+
l . ...

I

Q 

Q% 

N .  

p + 

GJ  

V1 ¢' 

N

N . "" 

i 

O  ¢, 

3 '  • 

N, >

O

p

p0   

N

c;

j  

Y

O

Y

U

c

to

N

co) 

co

ted° 

Y

o

ai

a 

a

o

o

w

0

as '. 

3

b

O .

off

o

Y

S 

4" 

G" 

N

iv. 

A - 

r 

sem" 

Q. 

l %" 

iii

co

i

r

o -

d

0

ami = 

a

v°

iEl
o

0

r

0

0

ani , ° 

ca, 

acai °° 

4" • ° >' 

o °' 

p

ca

Y

U , 

Y

a .

p

U

a 

o

ai

bA

m

o > 

o

ca

o

o *> 

N = 

3

3

cdcl
3

O

b

cz

b

ca >> 

c '

C3

o > 

Q. 

a 

3

4. 

t4

CA

4, 

b '

b

p

U

p

y

O

3

U

p

Y

Y

s: 

U

d 

t. 

v 

N

U

ca

Y

t03

w ° 

ti

ti

ca

ca ° 

ca

w4o
o ' ° 

U

v, 

N

0

N

t"
y

3•

r

Y

i.. 

w

U

3

Gn

y

U

y

Y

U

O

yN" 

Q

N

y

C' 

c0

c'" 

O

N

o

3 .

5, 

O •

O >, . 

0cz
ca

j0
O

U

l7

b

U

pU

N

O

U

w

bq

O

N

4-
4

p

ca '
C ; 

bA

U

U . 

Co

p

y

U ` 

Q. 

41

Y  

c

a  

N  

p '   

U _, 

o

Yy

N

O : 

N ° 

c4a

0"p >, 

3  • 

yam, 

U

ca — 

Y

y  

ca

ca .

r .- 

y

bA

U

L." 

U

Y

ti

Y

N '• 

S 

ZA

0

U

0Q.
O

rm '

I" 

Qb
sO
O

cn

O

dO

s 

G

U

Cfj

r - 

o

40
ca ,  

ca

t. 

O

V

U

co , `

3 .>' 

f . _

O

vUi

Q 

O

cl

0

n

y _

O '

C

O

O

O

O

cfjN .

p

O '

C

ca

O

ca

o >' 

r 

t,• 

y

4- 

cn

4-

4y
1. 

w

N ' 

0

C

Cha

o°

O

y

O0
poato
b

rn

Yo0

QO

UGo

UQ 

N

a > 

U

Y

Ocz

o

3

5

3p

Ux
o

C/] 

o

b
o

o

a

o

a

0

Q) 

Co

c6 ° . 

b

tom- ° 

o

a 

y

c

3-

d

o ° 

b

o .•—,.

yI ,

bo ., ..

3•-yI

41•.

n

i3"-

oi.

yM

cz

o

o

0" 

as -

0

ab °

o-° °° 

o  ° 

Ch4o

0 :

a . 

bb
W

0

co

to

U

U

Q

p 

cfca
ca

a

41ca

2

Lot, 

a

ca

n

4.
1

CAa Al

0co7Q) 
CO11.

1A

0

000



zSW
I..

LW0WU_ Jd00mr) 00

LUUQUI' 91

Iw

e

S

0Ov

4aaas

0

GJ

a

E

UOa

m

ix

mi

Ln

211

Or-
4

o

w

N

my
o

Z

N

CU

U) 

f

0

o

r4

N

Cv

Jw
3

0
0

3

U

m

CU

C7

mLn
o

n

M

N

W

G

cc
Q

t

CLWu ;; 

a

5ta

a

aassaas

x

ar

a 

a

ct

ixm

g

n

Q

M

Mn

OJ

N

a

m3

58'
5

Q) 

m

o

F

1

00

W

c

LUUQUI' 91

m

mi

Ln
N

r4

n

m

o

n

M

N

Lnt

n

Q

M

Mn

N

w

r-
4

el

m

N

1

00

W

c

2

n

U

r4

r4N
0

0- 

m

oM

1Y

r 

C

C



0

0

v

CN

0to

@

U) 

o

a' 

O

O

ti

MNN

MOIN

U

o

N

C

m
I

W

II

vii

N

C

M

CZ- 

oo

O

N

N' 

oo

Oc

N

air

o

E ° 

3° 

Lr) 

v
v

o

n

ca

N

VI

Ln

txoO

V

N

uC

II

II

11

Z

C

t~ 

U

N

2

0

OVD
a` 

V

O

C

0

Lr, 

V? 

N

7} 

t0

C

Gl

f0

J

II ` 

U

o

v

oo

pn

C

N

0

In

U

W

J

LL

he

noo

vN

U

NNrn

cSra, 

O

O

O

u

v

MN

MN

O - 

N

O

C

O

CUm

to

o

VVT

0 •

pN

C

7

0

UJ

to

IDIn

laV1

c

0

0

0

O

O

tb

O. 

N

O1

m

O- 

O` 

x

Z5

j

a

N

aaif

vii

o

H

O

oo

oo

N

y

Q

Oa

O

V

c > > 

OJ (

O

c

u

c

c

u

h

vOi

V - 

V

U

In
M

N

U

o

to

t

J

oo

N

N

L

Y

L

L

E

m

E

L

00

o -

o

tMA

tRn

Cj

L

L

L

w

U

Qj

N

C

V  

w

o

c

o

c

uO

O

0

O

2

Q

0

O

VT

V? 

a

o

uo
00

u

a

Q

a3
o

c

v

u

a

a

v

aYwIa,
va

l0

Ol

to

to

N

12
0

Z0LL

U) 

o

v

m 

m

00

0o

ao

mI

W

mN •

4

C

M

N

Oc

N

N

M, 

n

mLn
O

V

N

ai

t7

ai

V

m

O

n

N

Na) 

N

n

r14O

N

r-, 

vi

o
r- 

r- 

o

VVT

vlV? 

IDIn

laV1
i\ 

VT

a) 

l0

V1

rl

r -

I

oo

oo

oo

oo

oo
N

cy) 

oo
In
M

N

o0

06v) 

co
N

oO

voo

IO

mN

N

In

VT

V? 

V} 

V? 

O

H

N

l0

Ol

to

to

N

O

O

V

m

OIN

n

O

O
rq

N

n

ti

O

O

O

ti

i, 

ON

o0

7

O

tom/? M

lD

r, 

O

In

r` 

n

n

oo

oo

oo
o0

UOcu

@o

O

V

n

@

ao

u

v0

v

u

ar+ 10

mN

Z0LL



all

N0109

Mr

00dCD

n

N00

H00to

H00

G(

S3,

V

Q) U

OOvE

Ln1
O

p

O

p

0

00N

N

000

ry

N

N

h

Vl

o

I

g
M

S

N
0

u

ms

os1-
0

u

OEE

Q

O

Q

o

v

O
A

o

A

A

v0000
v$ 

08

v

Zo

s

ooc! IT

rni 

as

Ny` 

a

O

VM

IM
0` 

M- 
00

m

N

00
0

00
0

n

r

N

8

000

m

M

1A

N

V? 

N

ON

rjv

n

n

m

00

00

w

vOD

M

00

000

n

ti

N

a

NO

W

ea - IC

V

00

N

N

a/

1

C

ory

o

m

a

N

EN~ 

m

aE

c

mm

E

a

ar

M

NO ~ 

N

M

ON

O

O

O

D

ON

M

VN

O

N

m

a

0m

E

m

a

E ' 

v; 

E

C

aE

y

Yr

u

My

t

E

v

v

a

o

N

a1

O

N

a! 

Vf

rl

d

ry

L

m

0 

L

m

n

vf0mi 

c

V

C

o

u

n

u

on

0n

0

o

v

v

v

mvi

u

1% 

V1

N

N

to

N

m

m

m

G

G

OO
j `

y

O

O

O

O

a

n

c

a

c

n

n

a

a

a

a
o

a

a

s

Q

WJQ00V) 0U

WM

0000

Mr

00dCD

7O
n

mOl0

H00to

O
3.

V

s

G(

S3,

V

Q) 
U

OOvE

Ln
1

O

O

p

p

m

000 . 

N -i= 

et

mom' 
m_ 

00V1

Vl

o

I

g
M

S

000M

N
V

a

N
0

ms

os1-
0

O

O

00

00

C

n

N

00
0

00
0

n

r

N

000

i

Ne{ 

M

1A

N

V? 

0

rjv

mLvm

v

M

OO ^ 

v
OD

M

C, 

M

o

NO

N

L

3 " 

O

C

C

n3

Q

y

MO

NO

V

ow
M

a

o

c

C

ory

o

m

a

N

u

w

aE

y

Ec

mm

E

a

ar

ron

Dy

0

0

O

y

E

75

t

v

3,° 

v; 

O

u

u

5

O

no 

m

m

m

n

vf0mi 

00
a

a

n

u

o

u

n

u

on

0n

0

o

n

Q

c00

mi£ 

V) Z

Wio

4F0

ioL

mN000

OVLU
C

f

O3.

V

s

G(

S3,

V

Q) U

OOvE

Ln1O



Cd

tit

o

a) 

c 

o

cd

Cd

tu

303 °
sa, >

Cd

1-

4

o

V) 

o ' 

cd

cu

0

cd

i- - 

41

42) ° ,

It -°'"•~.: 

c 

oab°  

s3°

moo -

b 

a

U

Q•, °

o  

a 

41

v " 

o

Cdcc.
2  . ° 

oma°, • 

o (

u

rl

N  

o , . 

a, 

opo

o *

55 > 

a) 

Cd

0

00

0

rn

tet. 

o

o  ° (.

drn

v 

o

g

4.
4

U

to -+ . 

c (

44O

co

40, 

Qb
U

3

U •+ " +-'''-

b

U

U •-

U ++ -+ 

CUcri
v' +-' >, 

p '

on

O

Q

O

N

O -

O

Q. 

0

Cd

O

cO^ iC

cd

24

c 

o

w

o

N

o

a •

b

o . 

cG

a 

a 

as

W



LA

u

w23
c'

i • 

U

o

N

3

O

4-

j

O

O (

1) 

aU

v

v

N

O

O  a

xi

OCUO + 

a

G1

v

oma' 

u

m

3

Cd

to

v

v  

cu

aj

cu

bb

p

o

cuU

Cd

bb

03

w

O

U

O , 

cu

O

A ;

S '

C

O

O

Ii

O

Q, 

O

Q

ct3

tj

Li

O

O

u

o

rn

b  

O

m

p

o-

9

CO

O

ani  

3

o

cv

0

Cd

105 o ;(, 

V) 

xvrn

cn

0

0

O

v .

o

m



ig8



N

O

0
O

y

N

y

O + 

W

U

iii

C6

4

p

N •

ter

y

C,

3

O

U

O '

o

s

AGGb

N

O

O

y +

O

U

N

V

p

ti

as (

D

N

U

U

4

U

U } 

oo
n

0
3

0to
Q) 

o

0

0z

C'

3 ?, 

3

o

t

o

0

C 

N  

y ., 

f• 

y
iN• 

0

0

0

UUUUU

d03Ct

o

U

o

R" 

co

U

2

y '

v

0. 

U

o ++, 

o

co

o

Q) 

c;

3 - 

O ° 

r

u

b

4 ¢ 

o

U

0

0

C)

Y

b

3

co >,

4. 

o

Ut0

o

ani

b `

z ° 

0

o

DC7

O

U

g

3 

o

O

U

o

o

a°

i >, .  

o

zo
cl

0 .

0  

0

00

co

b

o

O

o '' 

o `" 

to

ami

O

U

o

U + 

o  

o

N

I , 

N

0

b

0

o> 

c;

3 '

C7CON
cC

N

O~

co cti

gs

N

O

H

y

to

cz

C

N

cb

r,, 

U

o03O
o

U

a°

i

0

o

b

o ' 

a 

o

c) 

U

coUo

p

c 

N

ca

N

C7

3

3 

3

as

3

L
OthO0

OaS
Tic;

j

O (]

a

r
VDb

U

y
U

U

E

F

003

UU

L) o

Q

U

x

AGGb

U

U

Coo

U

4

U

O3

03

03

O

N

m

z

o

0

o

0

0

0

UUUUU

LO
th

O0OaSTi
c;

j

O (]

a

rVDb

U

yU

U

E

F

003

UU

Item A3





Item C



















The City of Goldsboro
Commission on Community Relations and 

Development
host

the 34th annual

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Luncheon 

12 Noon

The First Church
1100 The First Church Road

Goldsboro, NC.  27534

Item D





Commission on Community Relations and Development-
Chair (center) Terri Bradley

MLK  Subcommittee:  Left to Right:  Marcus Lewis, 
Felecia Williams,(Community  Relations Director)

Amber Tyler, Washea Barnett, Carole Battle, (Chair)
Pastor Elliott,  Councilman Roderick White –
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones(not pictured)





Letter From 
Our Mayor





















The Challenge



Mr. Jashaun Peele



Donna Countryman



MLK Luncheon 
Revenue & Expenses

Expenditures Expenditure Total

Catering (Carl &Chelle’s) $11,545.15

Decorations (Sharon By Design) $2,800.00

Program Booklet Print(Accu Copy) $689.34

Entertainment (J. Peele\Sax) $450.00

Corsages, Boutonniere, Unity Candle(Pine Florist) $229.26

Engraved Pen Set  for Keynote Speaker (Christian Sol) $50.16

MLK Sponsorship letter -Postage $165.06

Total $15,928.97

Revenue Total: 15,882.66
MLK Balance:-$46.31
Balance Paid:  $46.31  paid by Carole Battle
MLK Balance: 0
*** No seed money or monies provided by the City  for the 2024  MLK Luncheon





34th Annual Dr. Martin 
Luther King Sponsorships

The MLK luncheon subcommittee would like to 
thank everyone that helped to make this luncheon 
a success.

The City of Goldsboro

Commission on Community  Relations and 
Development

Felicia Williams, Community Relations Director
Alan Williams

First Pentecostal Holiness Church
Sponsors

Curtis media
Goldsboro news august
Goldsboro Participants

Attendees
Sisters by design

Carl & Chelle’s Grill Room
Pinewood Florist

ACCU Copy



E



G, 

v

Cd

O

M

It

O

00

1

g

0

0

U  

O

Cd

O

o

o

ON

00

N

ONkn

O

s9

Gl
l

Con

ri

pO

N

O

N

N

O

oc

cy

in

In

v Cl

S

cn

o

a 

W

oN°
O

oo

bo
En  

O

U

V

ss

Gncn
va

ss

En

kn

cz

H

p00 

V

w 

w

w

w

H 

o

wJU 



F



ru

NN

W

oU

d

a

U

cc

o

ol

owe

N

03

C4-

4

GJ

U

q

U

13

O

U

O

j

i

pD

O

O

O

O

O

N

T

O

O

iSiy

on (:) 

i

O

O

7

a

O

O
CQ 

00 

O

lh . 

O

O

W

a

O

O^ 

v 

06

7

O

v 

U

cn

C

rc

oo
cc3

000

cz

Q

cd

C1

0

0

o

S

C

C

C

7b
a

U
U -

tj

O

o

0

0

00

o0

o

cd

U

N

al

RiQ

c

R

u

U, 

o

cltl 

0-

0

4-

i

W

G

a

E

W

p03O
O

cd

v

w

0

vto

CA

W

cL

O

d

a

ni

E

0.

O

a3

W

C'

s

u

p

cd

C%

1

p

C/

1

C/ 

O

Wy

O

F

M

M

O° 

W

W

cd

v' 

N

6i4

g

W

W

03

on

4

ai

CIA

C) 

C7

Go

F

H

NN

W

oU

d

a

U



G





pUq

p

c 

O

GO

w

O

N

U

O

o

is

O

ca

w

d

C7

o

003
N

O  

p

ccs

Y

Z

N

N •+= 

N

F7

ct

yUj

cn

co

cn

Cl

pczQccU
N". 

ON

U

t, 

cd

b

o . 

3+ 

cz

CW7N

oo 
3  

u

O

N

O

p ^ 

3

U

Cd

W . 

w

U44. y

cn

U

U

w

C

N = 

U '

C

cln + 
b

N '

C

cn

03 , 

O

rA

G." '

C -

p '

C

U

cd

b

w

CC., 

5 '

r. 

U

t0, 

N

cab
C

m

A
w

cz

j

O

O

ww

WA
w

a'
b  

a3  

ate? ''°'•° 

a 

O

o

U > 

Y

m

ct

co

ons

m

co

o

UQ)

4° 

u 

c

U

p

U = 

ai

C

W

CIS

W

N

W

W

C,

3

W

W

f, 

W

O° 

W '

C

m

W

co

W

3

Gn

03

t

0

3

3

Z

c7

ti

w

ty

U

O

O

0

cq

000

000

O

OC6
O

1.

6

Lri

L6

C5

cc

0

yw) 

ybio

a 

L

l

cr

do

00

F

Q) 

q

y0

Cd

o

0

0

sg

GG, 
o

aq

Q

sg

GAI

rM

O

v

O

LO

LO

O

O

O

N

O

LO

O

LO

O

LO

Lo

LO

O

Lo

00

O

ifJ

LO

4

10
0

CCCV

O

LO

O

N

d 
c+

D

CV

C

d' 

O

c0

r•+ 

N

O

m

v

CV

m

CV

LO

S 

c
c

cl

L

L6

O

cl
C

r- 

r- 

Ci

d

LO

00

f 

cv

Lo

M

y

o

cq

0cq
O 

WZ

o " 

C') 
o

rT4

c 

w

C cl

w

p

C 
L`

1

GQI

6Q. 

GOB 

GAI
czo

GOD. 

Go.)- 

Lo

L

o

to

F

F

0

F

a

c°

0o

in

00

6

74

co6

o

o

CC

c0

cl

O

O

L

ci

OLo

CVGSI

CVCV

CVrd00
0' 

000

m

0 

GG

Gr 

69

EA

603

GA

Ef3

O
O

eq00ti
F: 00

CEJ

0

0

cq

ccyw) 

ybio

a 

do

00

F

Q) 

U023

y0

Cd

o

0

0

o

aq

Q

w

c

ai

F

f 

cv

x

q, 

c) 

cu  

0abf
o

cq

WZ

o " 

C') 

o

rT4

c 

w

C 
cl

w

p

C 
L`

1

ycq 

Uwrn
czo

as

CW"3"

U

F

F

P. 

F

a

O
Oeq00tiF: 00CEJ



6911

eA

0

0

0

c 

o

CD

O
O

a

6'
1C6

Ww

O

Q

00

Lo

1-

1

ff3
C9
C*

J

4

L

tl'
J

CrJ

eq

6F} 

00

co

6R

i

06

S 

y

Lo

ccr, 

6911

eA

0

0

0

69

o

CD

O

O

LO

O

ODO

C

C

cq

O

cM

00

Lo

1-

1

LO

a

4

L

4

eq

6F} 

U

6R

69

6911

eA

0

0

0

00

o

O

O

L6

ODO

O 

cq

N

cM

N

Lo

1-
1

LO

a

4

L

NLO

000

Lo

O

N   

000

eq

6F} 

O

6R

O

C6

601, 

69

00

m

Lo

00

LO

O

c0

o6

d

cq

cyi

O

N

m

It

O

Lo

CcV

EF} 

b4

6F3

69

Crj

6911

eA

0

0

0

o

0

O

L6

ci

Lo

cq

O

O

N

000

LO

a

CO

CC

000

Lo

O

N   

000

cD

6F} 

O

6R

O

c

J

O

rte•+ 

O

00

m

cq

00

C 

c0

00

N

C6

cyi

m

N

m

Lo

00

c+

9

CV

00

EF} 

b4

6F3

69

LO

O

CV

co

CV

O

O

O

O

00

O

O

d

LO

CV

00

N

00

C  

CV

cD

0' 

d, 

C

O

CV

O

c

L

O

cD

Lf

00

CrJ

Cl

Ll

C 

Ll

t- 

0p

CV

00

SII

69

OI0COO

0

0

0

o

cq

O'
J

L6

ci

Lo

cq

CA

O

N

000

LO

a

CO

CC

000

Lo

O

N   

000

C+

9
O

CrJ

crJ

1

cYJ

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

a 

CV

O'
J

d' 

O

O

O

O

o0

O

O

cC

CA

OCV

Cl

LO

COV

c0

000

Lo

O

N   

000

O

cC

O

cC

m

LO

M

ulJ

m

dv

O

O

c

J

O

Lo

CV

N

o

16

00

O

0000

C6

cyi

CD

Cp

CV

cy: 

d' 

m

LO

69

69

b4

69

CV

co

CV

O

O

O

O

00

O

O

d

60

CV

00

C  

CV

cD

0' 

d, 

C

O

CV

O

00

LO

O

CV

Lo

O

cC

O

cD

OO
Cl

Ll

C 

Ll

t- 

0p

LO

m= 

LO

N

L

O

LO

O

O

N

OD

d

N

CEJ

cy

C

cl

C

cq

SII

COG] 

SII

Coll

ollMC4

cl

CA

MCV

CA

CA

OCV

c0

cD

c

D

0

ro

W

w

w

O

m

ani

P4W

y

cq

u

W

m

cq
C 

a

W

CA

cd

N

4

aS

Wf

alx
41H

awe
4. F

R

E- 

F

aIxUU
cd

d

cd

m¢ 

F

p°,,

wn

InW



H





RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 30

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A DEED OF EASEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND ROYAL FARMS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it the public interest to
remove and relocate sections of 10 -inch and 12 -inch water lines located on private Dropertv on West
Grantham Street; and

WHEREAS, the proposed 30 -ft. utility easement will contain the relocated 10 -inch and 12 -inch water
lines; 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to execute a Deed
of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and Royal Farms for a 30 -ft. utility easement on property
owned by Royal Farms; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Deed of Easement for a
30 -ft. utility easement between the City of Goldsboro and Royal Farms property on West
Grantham Street ( Parcel No. 2690603842). 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 4th day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

4
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gayl , 

Mayor



I























RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 31

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1
WITH DANIELS INC. OF GARNER, NC FOR THE 2023 RESURFACING PROJECT

FORMAL BID NO. 2023- 002

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro awarded a contract to Daniels Inc. of Garner, 
NC on October 2, 2023 for the 2023 Resurfacing Project; and

WHEREAS, due to cost overruns for additional asphalt required to complete this project, an

increased cost of $18, 779. 84 was incurred by the contractor; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to issue a final
adjusting change order to Contract 2023- 002 with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC for $ 18, 779. 84. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1. The Council hereby authorizes the Interim City Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for

18, 779. 84 with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
4th

day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

sc- 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

Mayor



J







Page 1 of 2 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNEXATION OF NON-CONTIGUOUS PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, 

NORTH CAROLINA 

Notice is hereby given that, in compliance with Section 160A-58.2 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, there will be a public hearing before the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, at its regular meeting in the Council Chambers, City Hall on Monday, April 1, 2024, at 7:00 
p. m. relative to the annexation of the real non-contiguous property hereinafter described to the City 
of Goldsboro. 
 
At this public hearing, all persons owning property in the area proposed to be annexed who allege error 
in the Petition for Annexation filed in this matter, as well as residents of the City of Goldsboro who 
question the necessity for annexation, will be given an opportunity to be heard along with the 
proponents of such annexation. The description of the area proposed to be annexed is as follows: 
 
Benjamin Carl Price 
BEING THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 299 AT PAGE 171, DEED BOOK 319 
AT PAGE 365, DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 367 AND DEED BOOK 2728 AT PAGE 456 ALL OF THE WAYNE 
COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY, THE PROPERTY OF BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE 
AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 728 OF DEEDS AT PAGE 458 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC 
REGISTRY (BEING LOT 10 AND A PORTION OF LOT 9 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE 
WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY), THE PROPERTY OF BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE 
LIPPERT PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 787 AT PAGE 180 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC 
REGISTRY (BEING LOT 11 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC 
REGISTRY) AND THE PROPERTY OF M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 425 AT PAGE 339 OF THE 
WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 8 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE 
WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY) AND TOGETHER IN TOTAL BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117 
(VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY) BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF 
M.B. PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 299 AT PAGE 171, DEED BOOK 319 AT PAGE 365, DEED BOOK 
319 AT PAGE 367 AND DEED BOOK 2728 AT PAGE 456 ALL OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY, 
HAVING NC STATE PLANE COORDINATES NAO 83(2011) N:575555.06 E: 2287543.89; THENCE WITH SAID 
WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117 THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES: 

1.) S 12°01'34" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 158.64 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

2.) S 11°18'12" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 220.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF CAROLINA 
STREET (60' RIGHT-OF-WAY) AND BEING THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF 
BENJAMIN CARL PRICE AND CONNIE LIPPERT PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 787 AT PAGE 180 
OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 11 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 
OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF CAROLINA 
STREET THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES: 

1.) N 78°41'48" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 155.58 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

2.) S 67°48'12" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 5.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY 
OF OUTLAW MOBILE HOME INC. AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 3506 AT PAGE 652 OF THE WAYNE 
COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 13 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE 
COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE OF OUTLAW MOBILE HOME INC N 
11°18'12" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 191.56 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY  LINE OF THE PROPERTY 
OF BASS DEVELOPMENT INC AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 3309 AT PAGE 309 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY 
PUBLIC REGISTRY (BEING LOT 7 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY 
PUBLIC REGISTRY); THENCE WITH SAID SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF BASS DEVELOPMENT 
INC N 67°48'12" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 13.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 
PROPERTY OF BASS DEVELOPMENT INC AND BEING THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF M.B. 
PRICE AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 425 AT PAGE 339 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY 



Page 2 of 2 
 

(BEING LOT 8 AS SHOWN ON PLAT BOOK 6 AT  PAGE 82 OF THE WAYNE COUNTY PUBLIC REGISTRY); 
THENCE WITH SAID LINE N 22°11'48" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 160.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
SOUTHERLY  LINE OF US HIGHWAY 13 (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE WITH SAID 
SOUTHERLY LINE US HIOGHWAY 13 N 68°10'15" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 178.20 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
AFOREMENTIONED  WESTERLY LINE OF US HIGHWAY 117; THENCE WITH SAID WESTERLY LINE OF US 
HIGHWAY 117 S 50°39'04" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 102.18 FEET TO THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING 
AND CONTAINING 71,032 SQUARE FEET OR 1.631 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing and to be heard. If you plan to attend 
and require a sign language interpreter, please contact the City Manager's office at City Hall at 
least four (4) days prior to the meeting. 

 
      
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
      
Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 
 
 
 
PUBLISH: March 21, 2024 
 



Item K





























L

Removed to March 18, 
2024 Individual Action

























M 

Removed to March 18, 2024 
Individual Action



Small Batch Craft Market

                                                                                             200 block of South 
Center Street (Northbound lane) from Spruce to Chestnut Street.























N



RESOLUTION 2024- 3 d - 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO

CONDEMN PROPERTY OF THE HEIRS OF OTHO J. GLENN, deceased and still record owner, 
LOCATED AT CARVER BLVD, LOT 4, BLOCK B, WASHINGTON PARK (HEIGHTS), parcel

number 2599516159, GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA IN CONNECTION WITH THE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT KNOWN AS " PROJECT BUTTER" 

WHEREAS, Otho J. Glenn, deceased, is the record owner of record of that certain property identified
above and located at Carver Blvd., Lot 4, Block B, Washington Park ( Heights), Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

designated as Parcel No. 2599516159, said property being as shown on the attached map; and

WHEREAS, a previous transfer in 2002 to the City of Goldsboro of other property owned by Otho J. 
Glenn identified the following as potential heirs to Otho J. Glenn: Ethlene Glenn, William E. Glenn, Joyce
Glenn Wallace, Cynthia Glenn Weeks, Larry Drake Glenn, Melva Glenn and Janice Manning ( deceased); and

WHEREAS, there may be additional heirs that are unknown at this time; and

WHEREAS, a portion ( i.e. an easement), of said property is required by the City in connection with the
Economic Development Project known as Project Butter; and

WHEREAS, as the taking of the portion needed would render the remainder of the property unusable, 
therefore the said taking would be for the entire property referenced herein; and

WHEREAS, negotiations with the owner at the appraised value of $3, 500. 00 have been unsuccessful

and said portion of the property and the property in its entirety are necessary for said project; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and in the best interest of the City that the City Attorney be
authorized to institute civil proceedings to condemn the entirety of said property and that the Director of
Finance be authorized to issue a draft to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner( s) in the
amount of $3, 500. 00. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that, pursuant to Chapter
40A of the North Carolina General Statutes, the City Attorney is hereby authorized to institute condemnation
proceedings to acquire the property, and the Director of Finance is hereby authorized to issue a draft in the
amount of $3, 500. 00 to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner( s). 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this 1-

0,

day of Mann , 2024. 

Attested by: 

C-- 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor,- fV
Mayor

TE



O



RESOLUTION 2024- 33

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO
CONDEMN PROPERTY OF THE HEIRS OF LULA FLOYD JACKS, deceased and still record
owner, LOCATED AT DEPRIEST ST., LOT 5, BLOCK C, WASHINGTON PARK ( HEIGHTS), 

parcel number 2599513165, GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA IN CONNECTION WITH THE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT KNOWN AS " PROJECT BUTTER" 

WHEREAS, Lula Floyd Jacks, deceased, is the record owner of that certain property identified above and
located at Depriest St., Lot 5, Block C, Washington Park ( Heights), Goldsboro, North Carolina, designated as

Parcel No. 2599513165, said property being as shown on the attached map; and

WHEREAS, the following have been identified as a potential heir to Lula Floyd Jacks: Eddie Floyd; 
and

WHEREAS, there may be additional heirs that are unknown at this time; and

WHEREAS, a portion ( i.e. an easement), of said property is required by the City in connection with the
Economic Development Project known as Project Butter; and

WHEREAS, as the taking of the portion needed would render the remainder of the property unusable, 
therefore the said taking would be for the entire property referenced herein; and

WHEREAS, negotiations with the record owner' s known heirs at the appraised value of $3, 500.00 have

been unsuccessful and said portion of the property and the property in its entirety are necessary for said
project; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and in the best interest of the City that the City Attorney be
authorized to institute civil proceedings to condemn the entirety of said property and that the Director of
Finance be authorized to issue a draft to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner(s) in the
amount of $3, 500. 00. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that, pursuant to Chapter
40A of the North Carolina General Statutes, the City Attorney is hereby authorized to institute condemnation
proceedings to acquire the property, and the Director of Finance is hereby authorized to issue a draft in the
amount of $3, 500. 00 to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner( s). 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this  day of r 1 ci f 6, k , 2024. 

City Clerk

Charles Gaylo , 

Mayor



P



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 31

RESOLUTION REVISING THE POLICY REGARDING THE USE OF

CITY -OWNED PROPERTY FOR SPECIAL EVENTS

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Police Department may issue permits for the usage of City - 
owned property for special events provided such uses comply with the provisions of the Policy; 
and

WHEREAS, the use of City -owned Parks and Recreation property, Goldsboro Event
Center, Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course and the Paramount Theatre is not regulated by this
Policy; and

WHEREAS, the application fees for special events and parades are requested to be
increased due to administrative and labor cost; and

WHEREAS, City employees spend a great deal of time preparing for special events and
parades; and

WHEREAS, the intent of this change is to use the HUB and/ or Freedom Field for events

instead of closing streets in the City of Goldsboro based on feedback from Council; and

WHEREAS, application fees may be waived by the City Manager for events sponsored
by the City of Goldsboro and all other application fees requested to be waived must go before

the City Council. All requests for sponsorships must be approved by a majority vote of City
Council

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that the Policy Regarding the use of City -Owned Property for
Special Events shall be revised as stated in the policy presented. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

4th

day of March, 2024

Attested by: 

ioju 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

Mayor



 
City of Goldsboro 

Subject: Policy Regarding the Use of    
                City-Owned Property for    
                Special Events 

Policy #:  Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP - 003 03-04-2024 1 03-04-2024  1 of 3 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2024-34 

Prepared by: City Manager’s Office 

Submitted by: City Manager’s Office Supersedes: Resolution No. 2023-36 Approved by: City Council  

 
Purpose 
 
The Goldsboro Police Department may issue permits for the usage of City-owned property for 
special events provided such uses comply with the provisions of this Policy.  The use of City-
owned Parks and Recreation property, Goldsboro Event Center, Goldsboro Municipal Golf 
Course, and the Paramount Theatre is not regulated by this Policy. 

 
1. Filing of an Application for Use of City-Owned Property 

 

Any person, firm or organization that proposes to utilize City-owned property for a 
special event shall prepare and file an application with the Goldsboro Police 
Department, which shall contain the following information. 

 
a. The name, address and telephone number of the entity desiring to utilize the City-

owned property. 
 
b. A detailed description of the event to be held including the event name, proposed 

date and times of the event, description of the event, security needs and plans to 
address security issues, food, beverages, alcohol or other products to be served or 
sold, parking and traffic plans, trash collection and recycling plans. 

 
c. A drawing or site plan showing the City-owned property to be utilized depicting the 

proposed routes, placement of tables, barricades, portable bathroom facilities, 
parking or any other structures or uses proposed to be conducted on the property. 

 
d. An indemnity statement, approved by the City Attorney, whereby the event operator 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the city and its officers, agents and 
employees from any claim arising from the operation of the special event. 

 
e. A copy of all permits and licenses issued by the State or the City including health 

and ABC permits, licenses necessary for the conducting of the special event or a 
copy of the application for the permit if no permit has been issued. 

 
f. An application fee of $$500.00 for special events and $$600.00 for parades will be 

required at the time the application is submitted. This fee will be returned if the 
permit is denied.  Application fees may be waived by the City Manager for events 
sponsored by the City of Goldsboro. All other application fees requested to be 
waived must be approved by City Council.   

 
g.    The fee schedule for the use of the HUB and/or Freedom Field is noted on the HUB 

rental request form.  
 
 
 



Subject: Policy Regarding the Use of    
                City-Owned Property for    
                Special Events 

Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP - 003 05/01/2023 1 03-04-2024 2 of 3 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2024-34 

Approved by: City Council  

 
2. Issuance of Permit 

 

No permit for the usage of a City-owned property for a special event may be issued 
unless the application is complete and unless the following requirements are met. 

 
a. The special event must be allowable by the underlying zoning district. 
 
b. Hours for the special event shall be no earlier than 9:00 a.m. and end no later than 

10:00 p.m. unless approved by Goldsboro City Council.  
 
c. Security plans, including the provision of providing off-duty police officers must be 

provided as approved by the Goldsboro Police Department. 
 
d. Solid waste plans must be provided and approved by the Public Works Department.  

Solid waste plans shall include provisions for both trash and recyclables. An 
additional fee in the amount determined by the City Manager’s Office may be 
charged if the property is not cleaned to its prior condition. 

 
e. No political or campaign promotions are permitted during the special event. 
f. No firearms are permitted on City-owned property. 
 
g. Excessive noise in violation of the City’s Noise Ordinance will not be permitted and 

penalties may be invoked as follows: 
 
     1st Offense:     Warning (Verbal or Written) and/or fine 

  2nd Offense:    Termination of Special Event and/or fine  
 
h. Evidence of adequate insurance to hold the City and its taxpayers harmless from 

claims arising out of the operation of the special event as determined by the City 
Manager in consultation with the City Attorney and insurance carrier. Applicant 
must provide proof of general liability insurance coverage of at least $1 million. 
Carnival applicants must provide proof of liability insurance coverage of at least   
$5 million. The city must be listed as an additional insured on the Certificate of 
Insurance. 

 
i. All tents and other appurtenances to be utilized in conjunction with the special event 

shall meet all North Carolina Fire and Building Code requirements and obtain 
necessary permits.  Events as required by the North Carolina Fire Code may require 
the provision of fire department personnel. 

 
j. When the usage of City-owned property for a special event could impact adjoining 

properties from a traffic, noise, parking or other perspective, all affected parties will 
be notified.  All properties within 100 ft. of the downtown special event will be 
notified by the City of Goldsboro staff via hand-delivered flyer, mail or email 
detailing the time, place and description of the event.  

 
k. The City Manager may require additional provisions if he or she feels it is in the 

best interest of the City and its citizens. 
 

3. Alcoholic Beverages on City-Owned Property for Special Events 
 

The City Manager may approve the consumption of alcoholic beverages on public 



Subject: Policy Regarding the Use of    
                City-Owned Property for    
                Special Events 

Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
CMOP - 003 05/01/2023 1 03-04-2024 3 of 3 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
Resolution No. 2024-34 

Approved by: City Council  

 
property in accordance with Section 130.03 of the Goldsboro City Code if all the 
following requirements have been satisfactorily addressed and that the granting of a 
permit is in the City of Goldsboro or the public’s best interest. 

 
a. All necessary ABC permits have been issued by the State. 
 
b. Signs shall be posted, visible at all exit points from the special event that it is 

unlawful to remove alcoholic beverages in open or unsealed containers from the 
premises. Areas where alcohol will be consumed, served or sold must clearly be 
defined and delineated on the premises by barricades, caution tape or other 
acceptable means. 

 
c. The applicant or operator of the special event shall not have violated any law, 

regulation or ordinance relating to the possession, sale, transportation or consumption 
of intoxicating beverages or controlled substances for the three years preceding the 
commencement of the special event. 

 
4. Denial of Request for Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events 

 

An application may be denied if it is found that the granting would not be in the City of 
Goldsboro’s or the public’s interest.  If the City Manager or his or her designee feels that 
the use of the City-owned property for a special event has been so utilized on an 
excessive or too frequent basis, the application may be denied. Any applicant denied a 
permit to utilize City-owned property for a special event shall receive a written statement 
outlining the grounds on which the denial is based. The applicant may appeal the denial 
of the application to the City Council within fifteen working days of the written denial 
and the City Council may take such corrective action as it shall find necessary. The 
findings and the determination of the City Council shall be final. 

 
5. Permit Revocation 

 

The Goldsboro Police Department may revoke a permit issued pursuant to this section if 
he or she finds that the applicant or operator of the special event has: 

 
a. Deliberately misrepresented or provided false information in the permit application; 
 
b. Violated any provision, City or County Health Department regulation; 
 
c. Violated any law, regulation or ordinance regarding the possession, sale, 

transportation or consumption of intoxicating beverages or controlled substances; 
 
d. Operates the special event in such a manner as to create a public nuisance or to 

constitute a hazard to the public health, safety or welfare, specifically including 
failure to keep the City-owned property clean and free of refuse. 

 
**In the event of inclement weather or other emergency situations, the City of Goldsboro 

Manager’s Office and/or Goldsboro Police Department reserve the right to cancel all 
events.  



Q



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 3s

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK

TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH CROSSROADS STRATEGIES

WHEREAS, it is estimated that Seymour Johnson Air Force Base has an economic impact in

Wayne County of 990 million dollars annually; and

WHEREAS, the City and County believe that a reduction of fighter planes, airman, and
support personnel will have a deleterious effect on our region; and

WHEREAS, the City and County believe that our local voice must be more strongly heard by
those that can and will affect change. Therefore, the City of Goldsboro has in consultation with the
County and Friends of Seymour made the decision to change consultants to support the relationship
the City has with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and state and federal legislators; and

WHEREAS, Crossroads Strategies was founded in 2010 and offers a comprehensive suite of

services ranging from congressional affairs to agency and regulatory lobbying; and

WHEREAS, Crossroads Strategies will advise the City, County and Friends of Seymour on
legislative issues impacting Seymour Johnson Air Force Base. They will also work with federal
agencies on behalf of the City; and

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement shall commence on March 1, 2024, and remain in

effect through June 30, 2024. The City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne will pay Crossroads
Strategies a project fee of $ 60, 000. 00 which shall be billed by Crossroads Strategies in two equal
parts of $30,000.00 each to the City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne. It is expected that an
additional agreement will be signed for FY24- 25; and

WHEREAS, the City and County will reimburse Crossroads Strategies for all reasonable
expenses associated with the above services, the expenditure of which shall be pre -approved and will

be billed monthly as needed. The agreement may be terminated by either party with 30 days' written
notice; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County have historically relied on and worked
closely with Seymour Johnson Air force for over five decades providing benefit for both the city, 
county and region. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro
North Carolina, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign an agreement with
Crossroads Strategies in conjunction with the County of Wayne and Friends of Seymour for
consulting services to maintain a strong military presence in our region. 

Adopted this the 4`
h

day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

Mayor

U

r



Crossroads Strategies LLC 
P: 202.559.0170 | F: 202.559.0171 | 800 North Capitol St, NW #800 | Washington, DC 20002 www.crshq.com 

February 25, 2024 

Henry Smith, Esq.   
Friends of Seymour Johnson  
c/o Warren, Kerr, Walston, Taylor & Smith, LLC 
117 Ormond Avenue   
Goldsboro, NC 27533   

Dear Henry: 

This ConsulPng Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered as of March 1, 2024, between  
Crossroads Strategies, LLC (hereinaXer “Consultant” or “CRS”), and Seymour Support Council, 
Inc., d/b/a/ Friends of Seymour Johnson, the City of Goldsboro, and the County of Wayne 
(hereinaXer “Client”) and relates to certain consulPng services to be rendered by Consultant to 
Client with respect to the services below:  

DescripPon of Services  
Consultant will advise Client on legislaPve issues impacPng the enPty, work with appropriate 
congressional commi]ees, leadership, and individual members to facilitate Client’s agenda. 
Consultant will also work with agencies within the AdministraPon on behalf of Client.  

Terms of the Agreement  
The term of this Agreement shall commence on March 1, 2024, and remain in effect through 
June 30, 2024.  In consideraPon of these services, Client will pay Consultant a project fee of 
$60,000.00 which shall be billed by the Consultant in two equal parts of $30,000.00 each to the 
City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne.  Client will reimburse Consultant for all reasonable 
expenses associated with the above services, the expenditure of which shall be pre-approved 
and will be billed monthly as needed.   

Contact and CommunicaPon 
Henry Smith and Ken Gerrard, represenPng Friends of Seymour, will be the primary points of 
contact for the Client.  A regular bi-weekly call will be scheduled that includes the Consultant 





Item R


	Agenda 3-4-24
	ws item a - COG_UW_NPO_2024
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	ws item a2 - NOFO COG - United Way
	ws item b - GIS_Council_Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Introduction
	Current GIS Projects (Engineering)
	Internal GIS Initiatives
	External GIS Initiatives
	Future GIS Initiatives
	Questions?

	Item A1 - Special Meeting Minutes 1-18-24
	Item A2 - Minutes 1-22-24
	UHistoric District Commission
	UGoldsboro Planning Commission
	Appoint - Glen Barwick
	UGoldsboro Tourism Council


	Item A3 - Minutes 1-23-24
	Item C - Hope Restorations Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	Item D - The City of Goldsboro MLK Power Point
	The City of Goldsboro� Commission on Community Relations and Development� host� the 34th annual�� Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Luncheon �� 12 Noon�� The First Church�1100 The First Church Road�Goldsboro, NC.  27534
	Slide Number 2
	Commission on Community Relations and Development- �Chair (center) Terri Bradley�MLK  Subcommittee:  Left to Right:  Marcus Lewis, �Felecia Williams,(Community  Relations Director)� Amber Tyler, Washea Barnett, Carole Battle, (Chair)�  Pastor Elliott,  Councilman Roderick White – �Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones(not pictured)�
	Slide Number 4
	Letter From Our Mayor
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	The Challenge
	Mr. Jashaun Peele
	Donna Countryman
	MLK Luncheon �Revenue & Expenses
	Slide Number 19
	34th Annual Dr. Martin Luther King Sponsorships

	Item E - Agenda 2024-03-04 G1105 2018 Street Bond Amend_0
	Agenda Memo G1105 2024-03-04 Ord Amend_0
	ORDIN G1105 2018 Steet Bonds CPF 2024-03-04_0

	Item F - Agenda 2024-03-04 G1109 State Approp Amend_0
	Agenda G1109 State Approp Grant 03-04-24_0
	ORDIN G1109 State Approp Grant 03-04-24_0

	Item G - Agenda 2024-03-04 FY24 Operating Amendment_0
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2024-03-04_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2024-03-04_0

	Item H - Agenda Item for March 4, 2024 Deed of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and Royal Farms
	Item I - Agenda Item for March 4, 2024 - 2023 Resurfacing Project Change Order No. 1 (Formal Bid No. 2023-002)
	Item J - Set Public Hearing - Royal Farms Annex
	Agenda Memo Set Public Hearing for Royal Farms Store #520
	Royal Farms Annexation Map 85x11
	Legal Ad for Agenda Memo Set Public Hearing for Royal Farms Store #520

	Item K - 45th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run - Run For a Child
	Blank Page

	Item L - Small Batch Craft Market-June 7 & August 2 - Permit Application
	Blank Page

	Item M - Small Batch Craft Market Nov 30 Permit Application
	Blank Page

	Item N - Condemn Glen Property
	Item O - Condemn Jacks Property
	Item P - Special Events Policy
	Item Q1 - Crossroads Agreement
	Item Q2 - Crossroads Strategies Agreement 2024
	Item R - Womens History 2024
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



